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2019/20 was an important year for Hong Kong as an International
Financial Centre.

There was a series of formidable challenges. We have met these
challenges well and will continue to meet them well. “When the
going gets tough, the tough gets going.”

Throughout these months, notwithstanding the social situation
locally or economic changes globally, Hong Kong's financial
system remains strong. Banks are healthy with a stable deposit
base as well as loan portfolios. Securities firms prosper, not least
from us once again taking first place in IPO fundraising in the
world and from our growth as Asia’s top wealth management
centre. The insurance sector also makes its share of contribution,
both within Hong Kong and in the Mainland market, especially
in the Greater Bay Area.

One of the remarkable things which our industry has done is to
adopt fast to technology. A lot of activities are now conducted
without the need of physical meetings. The Financial Services
Development Council (“FSDC") itself has run numerous events
virtually. Finance in Hong Kong is increasingly a dual people-and-
technology service.

Looking ahead, uncertainties and even tensions in international
trade and the geopolitical sphere mean that Hong Kong will be all
the more comparatively attractive as a known and trusted place
for doing business and handling investments.

The FSDC will have a part in Hong Kong's navigating through
the times ahead. As a high-level, cross-sectoral advisory body to
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government (“the
Government”), we are uniquely positioned to help gather market
feedback, insights — and foresights.
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In furtherance of our role, in this year, the FSDC published
six research reports and consultation responses on measures
for enhancing Hong Kong's financial market infrastructure and
regulatory regime. The publications cover a range of topics including
the operational model for an uncertificated securities market;
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”); the disclosure of
interest regime; promotion of our private wealth management
sector; and tax recommendations for the insurance industry.

We are encouraged by the Government’s positive reception of
our recommendations. Of the 130+ recommendations made by
the FSDC to date, over 110 have been adopted. In this year, our
recommendations on ESG strategy, on tax concessions for privately
offered funds, and on maritime leasing received carefully study
by the Government and gained much support. Some others are
being actively considered and we will continue to follow up with
the relevant Government bureaux and agencies.

The FSDC also continued to reach out to the local community
and boosted Hong Kong's overall presence at the international
stage. In addition to our popular Practitioner Speaker Series and
a successful annual Career Day, | am glad to report that the
FSDC is introducing a Talent Amplifier Programme, which will
provide tertiary students with opportunities to job shadow csuite
executives in the industry for a glimpse of their day-to-day work
as well as the culture and environment of their organizations.

On the international front, we sponsored several large-scale
events. We also recently joined the World Alliance of International
Financial Centres as one of its Asian members. Through this
platform our counterparts overseas expressed a keen interest in
learning more about how Hong Kong and Hong Kong’s financial
services industry had managed a good response to the pandemic.
We are heartened to have been able to host a special session with
government officials and private sector experts for an international
sharing of experience and views.

2019/20 is the first full year of the FSDC operating as a legal
entity with its own board of directors and its own staff. | am
much indebted to all the directors for their leadership and counsel.
Equally, | express my and the board’s gratitude to the many fellow
finance professionals who contribute to our committees and
working groups. Their guidance combined with our staff’s energy
make the FSDC a wonderful team.

This Annual Report is being released amidst momentous changes.
Hong Kong has always done well with changes. | am confident
that we shall continue to do so and that FSDC, with its wonderful
team and your support, will have a positive part in our collective
suCCess.

Laurence Li Lu-jen
Chairman
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("FSDC") was
established in 2013 by the Hong Kong Special Administrative

The Financial Services Development Council
Region Government (“the Government”) as a high-level, cross-
sectoral advisory body to engage the industry in formulating
proposals to promote the further development of the financial
services industry of Hong Kong and to map out the strategic
direction for the development.

The FSDC has been incorporated as a company limited by
guarantee with effect from September 2018 to allow it to better
discharge its functions through research, market promotion and
human capital development with more flexibility.

Objectives

The FSDC aims to:

1. advise the Government on strategies and measures to
expand the scope of the financial markets of Hong Kong
and enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong as an
international financial centre;

2. support the financial services industry of Hong Kong in
developing the core competence and knowledge of its
practitioners; and

3. promote the financial services industry of Hong Kong
and Hong Kong as an international financial centre in the
Mainland and overseas.
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Chairman

Z /=% &% | Mr Laurence Li Lu-jen

Temple Chambers

BIORANEAD
\ Senior Counsel

Temple Chambers
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Members

AN AN

E SR8 L | Dr AuKing-lun /& #8 & %2 = | Ms Diana Cesar
BEEEBRAF BEELBELRITERAR

B EEpEE

President BEBEBITHER

Value Partners Group Limited Group General Manager

Chief Executive, Hong Kong
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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PR i} EE Zz £ | Ms Bonnie Y Chan

BERGREERARRQA

FHEE

(& Z2020%F151A)

Head of Listing

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(Till T January 2020)
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R 3% {8 22 = | Ms Lena Chan I 8 B %k & | Mr Mark Dickens
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Managing Director Former Chief Executive Officer

Wellfull Securities Company Limited Financial Reporting Council

T B %L | Ms Ding Chen SEIB# % &£ | Mr Henry Fan Hung-ling
BMARREEERARDA FEARDA

B EEEER

Chief Executive Officer Managing Director

CSOP Asset Management Limited Hong Kong Glory Limited

B E Wi % &£ | Mr Glenn Fok tAZ 218+ | Dr Hu Zhanghong
Moelis & Company AERBARAREREGR AR
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Senior Consultant CEO

Moelis & Company Greater Bay Area Homeland Investments Limited

6 ANNUAL REPORT %% 2019/20



EXENKE
BOARD MEMBERSHIP

AN AN

HEEBRE%E | MrlJim Lai =Rt 5% £ | Mr Brian Li Man-bun
BaEE REHRITAERDA

Bl iR AT IR A

ErbiR1T Co-Chief Executive

EE 5 The Bank of East Asia, Limited

(R f2020%F 152 A Fi5)

Vice President

Tencent Holdings Limited

Chairman

Fusion Bank Limited

(The Term of Office Began on 2 January 2020)

AN AN

#i@E L | DrLin Yong {8 LA 38 % 4 | Mr Joe Ngai
BEERESEEERQA EBHRF

B ZEARITRAAE EREFHFATEREH

(TR 120201 52 A Fi5) Senior Partner

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Managing Partner, Greater China

Haitong International Securities Group Limited McKinsey & Company, Incorporation Hong Kong

(The Term of Office Began on 2 January 2020)

™\

Z R % % | Mr Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir

25T EBA
BEEREBA
E25HTEEER

Senior Partner, Hong Kong
Vice Chairman, KPMG China
KPMG
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& Fi# £ | Ms Winnie Wong Chi-shun
THRBAERABDREZERBRAER AR
THREHZRNTES

CEO & Executive Director

Asia Insurance & Avo Insurance

AN

& T IL 55 & | Mr Stephen Wong Yuen-shan
BEEEES

BEnERAABREMRAERRE R

Deputy Executive Director & Head of Public Policy Institute
Our Hong Kong Foundation

EARE

Ex-officio Member

AN AN

#FIE F % 4% | Mr Christopher Hui Ching-yu 2B %&£ | Mr James H. Lau Jr.

BREBREBRRAER MM EBREBRBRE
(R2019F6F17H B FmBITHAEREFEKE (R2020%F 4522 H R F)

I E2020F 422 AR EFT T REAREFGHKE) Former Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Retired on 22 April 2020)

(Appointed as Executive Director and Board Member on 17 June
2019 and re-designated as Ex-officio Board Member with effect
from 22 April 2020)
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B & A Convenor
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BEER

(FF R fh20209F 1517 H B 48)

Mr Jim Lai

Vice President

Tencent Holdings Limited

Chairman

Fusion Bank Limited

(The Term of Office Began on 17 January 2020)

K & Members

Policy Research Committee

The Policy Research Committee leverages on the broad-based
representation of the FSDC and its Members’' extensive industry
network to facilitate in-depth deliberation on the development
of Hong Kong's financial services industry. It produces pragmatic
action points for consideration by the Government, regulators,
industry and other stakeholders.

PR If BE 22 &
EARGREEMBR AR
FHEE

(B Z2020F151H)

Ms Bonnie Y Chan

Head of Listing

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(Till 1 January 2020)

Bk fm e £ PR A8 1 S5 A BRIGER 22T

BITRT(FE)BR AT REBMEREERFERAA mYMER T GEIIT

RAPERICEE R E R BEERERE EEEAHISEEERA

TREBHEIEERRALE BT EBEBRAEESRA
B REFERA

Mr Andrew Au Mr Henry Chan Yue-hung Ms Rebecca Chan

Regional Head of Global Banking, Chief Investment Officer National Capital Market Group

Corporate and Institutional Banking, BEA Union Investment Management Leader, China

Greater China & North Asia Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (HK) Limited

Government Affairs Leader,
Southern Region

Partner, Audit & Assurance
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Mr Philip Chiu
Director
Fusion Bank Limited

BRERE
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ERHKE
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Mr David Lau

Managing Director

Head of Global Investment Banking,
Hong Kong

J.P. Morgan

Mr Emmanuel V Pitsilis
Venture Investor and Entrepreneur
(Till 1 January 2020)

& R K B Ex-officio Member
BeR 74 BR o A
PEEBEAEKBEBER

Mr Joseph H. L. CHAN

BEETT

Al IEEME

AEA

(E A 52020 5 A4 H Fi45)

Ms Lisa Chung Mo-ching
Partner

Slaughter and May

(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)
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Mr James Philip Lloyd

Partner, Asia-Pacific FinTech & Payments

Leader
EY

Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
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Mr Victor Ho
Partner
Allen & Overy
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IR 1T

MR ERDRNEBEEE
BEXEREERITHABE
(FE B 520204 5 4 H Fi 15)

Ms Amy Lo Choi-wan
Co-Head UBS Wealth
Management Asia Pacific
Head and Chief Executive
UBS Hong Kong Branch
UBS AG

(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)
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Mainland Opportunities Committee

The Mainland Opportunities Committee serves to study the
Mainland’s financial reform and the internationalisation of its
market and currency and their implications for the financial
services industry of Hong Kong. In the process, it identifies Hong
Kong’'s unique role and encourages cross-boundary dialogues
at relevant levels, and rallies support from the Government,
regulators and industry for activities to the mutual benefit of the
Mainland and Hong Kong.

Z & A Convenor
TELZL
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@

BAERAA

Ms Ding Chen
Chief Executive Officer
CSOP Asset Management Limited

K & Members

BN IR

BEBR S
EFEBKEREEPRLEESK
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Prof Shusong Ba
Managing Director and
Chief China Economist
Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited

Chief Economist

China Banking Association

PR AR LA

5% S Rk EE
BREIRENEEETERE
(fF 21 f12020F 5 54 A F 15)

Mr Leiming Chen

Senior Vice President &
General Counsel

Ant Financial Services Group
(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)

HERBL
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Dr Hu Zhanghong

CEO

Greater Bay Area Homeland
Investments Limited
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Mr Brian Li Man-bun
Co-Chief Executive
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

LERE
TIREBEEERBRAT
TR

Mr Shen Hua
Chief Executive Officer
BOCHK Asset Management Limited

BaNKE
EREB)REERAT
HFRAMHRE

Mr Nick Young
Chief Compliance Officer

MoBE L
BREKRESEEERATF
BIERFRITHRAE

Dr Lin Yong

Deputy Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Haitong International Securities
Group Limited

T#xE
RBBTENHDERAE
BFEEX

RBBRITENDBERABDEAEDTT

1T AR
RBIRIT(EE)BERAT
BEEER

Mr Wang Feng

Chief Expert

Bank of Communications Company
Limited

Chief Executive

Bank of Communications Company
Limited Hong Kong Branch

Chairman

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong)

Limited

RRBEL
TERERRAE AT
ZEERERAA

Mr Wallace Yu
Head of Multi-Asset Group

CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited China Investment Corporation
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Mr Liu Shihong
Director

Taiping Reinsurance Company Limited

Director & General Manager
Taiping General Insurance
Company Limited

TEEL
It RTT
BETELESR
TMEBERREE

Dr Wang Tao

Chief China Economist

Head of Asia Economic Research
UBS
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Z & A Convenor

BETHBEXLT
SMRBABRAF N LZHRRBRAR AT
TREHRFRRITES

Ms Winnie Wong Chi-shun
CEO & Executive Director
Asia Insurance & Avo Insurance

& & Members

Mr Dean Chisholm
SIEHREER T KBRAT
DAREEE

NEKE
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New Business Committee

The New Business Committee focuses on business in
financial services that enhances and reinforces Hong Kong's
competitiveness and distinctively differentiates our unique
position. Its goal is to enhance our economy and society. It works
in close collaboration with other Committees under the FSDC,
industry bodies and stakeholders to study possible areas of new
business that can be developed in Hong Kong.

WE R EE
B TSE
e AT IR A8 5k

Mr Dylan Bryant

Director, Strategic Account
Management, Asia

Aon

Mr Dean Chisholm

Regional Head of Operations,
Asia Pacific

Invesco Asset Management
Pacific Limited

Mr Mark Dickens
Former Chief Executive Officer
Financial Reporting Council
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Mr Tim Freshwater
Chairman
Goldman Sachs Asia Bank Limited

BEESLE
HIEEREXEEER AT
SR EBIMAFRA KA

(fF 2 /120209 5 54 4 F 15)

Mr Arthur Lau Tak-kei
Co-Founder & Partner

Ark Pacific Capital Management
(The Term of Office Began on

4 May 2020)

RBFLE
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BEA

Mr Woo Pat-nie
Partner
KPMG

BB EE
BRBOKBE R BN ERA
TR ARG A BA

hEAMREECRREERS

TE

SARBBITREATSHBEE

Mr Rex Ho

Financial Services Tax Partner
Mainland China and Hong Kong
Financial Services Tax Leader
Asia Pacific Banking and Capital
Markets Tax Leader
PricewaterhouseCoopers

R REEE
SEMTZEEKE
BEREREFERBE

Mr Mark Saunders

Group Executive, Chief Strategy &
Corporate Development Officer
AlA Group

EEELEE
PREH R (BER)BRAF
= A% B A

Mr Yam Chi-fai

Senior Advisor

Sinosoft (International) Company
Limited
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NEE P
GOPTRES:IES)
BRARERBRGITEE

Mr Jeremy Dinshaw Lam
Partner and Head of Financial
Services Practice

Deacons

Mr Gabriel Wilson-Otto

Head of Stewardship, Asia Pacific
BNP Paribas Asset Management
(The Term of Office Began on

4 May 2020)
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& & A Convenor
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Mr Henry Fan Hung-ling

Managing Director
Hong Kong Glory Limited

K & Members

NEKE
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Market Development Committee

The Market Development Committee serves to raise the profile of
Hong Kong's financial services industry locally, in the Mainland
and in overseas markets. It aims to enhance the effectiveness and
focus of promotional efforts of various industry stakeholders by
being a strategic coordinator and / or partner to champion the
Hong Kong Inc. brand for financial services. Working alongside
the other Committees under the FSDC and engaging with the
stakeholders, the Market Development Committee works towards
promoting Hong Kong as the prime choice for global and

Mainland firms to locate financial services operations.

RARLZL REGEBF L REAE L
ERELBESRITERRAT EREREEHEGS BFERRT AL
SEBKE gk IRmERBELTRIEHIEEE

EBRITHEER

Ms Diana Cesar

Group General Manager

Chief Executive, Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Dr Eva Chan Yee-wah
Chairman

Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association

(F A fh20209F 5 54 8 FF45)

Dr Wilson Chan Fung-cheung
Associate Director of MBA Programme
City University of Hong Kong

(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)
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BREAKA

Ms Susie Cheung Sau-fun
Co-Convenor
Asia-Pacific Structured Finance

Association

BE B R ST &

BH&EE

BRE EFEHAE
(FE A f520204F 5 4 H Fi 45)

Mr Benson Luk Hon-man

Vice President, Chairman’s Office

Lai Sun Group
(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)

Moelis & Company
= 4%

Mr Glenn Fok
Senior Consultant
Moelis & Company

& PR TE
REHREE
EK

Mr Stephen Phillips
Director-General of Investment
Promotion

Invest Hong Kong
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Mr Stephen Liang
Assistant Executive Director
Hong Kong Trade Development Council

Bt
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Ms Daisy Yeung
Chief Executive Officer
Emperor Capital Group
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B £ A Convenor

Bk E

BEEAEES

Bl ER A AABRRAERRE

Mr Stephen Wong Yuen-shan

NEKE
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Human Capital Committee

The Human Capital Committee examines the strategic
development of human capital in the financial services industry
with a holistic view. It aims to strengthen collaboration between
the demand and supply sides of the financial talent pool. It
supports capacity building for our home-grown professionals and
identifies issues which may hinder Hong Kong from attracting the
right talents, with due consideration to the fast-evolving nature
of financial services and the increasingly global and regional focus
of the industry.

Deputy Executive Director & Head of Public Policy Institute

Our Hong Kong Foundation

X B Members

PR R IR PRI + A B A

BEERXKRE BEEHFBRATF BREAERERAF
TARHER R R TRBHIX WITES aRBA

Professor Kalok Chan Ms Lena Chan Mr Mervyn Chow

Wei Lun Professor of Finance Managing Director Partner

CUHK Business School Wellfull Securities Company Limited Hillhouse Capital Management
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Limited
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(EEPA
BAFRBERBERA
BRATE

Dr Stan Ho Ho-ming
Chief Executive Officer
Lianhe Ratings Global Limited

B E

=) u\?xé{%%ﬂxﬁé(ﬂﬁ M) B R
EERQ

i%ﬁ g

Mr James Tam Chor-kiu
Managing Director

Bain Capital Private Equity (Asia),
Limited Liability Company

%%K%
KERIMEREZR
TREBHEK

(E A 2020 5 A4 H Fi45)

Prof Anna Wong Wai-kwan
Professor of Practice in Finance
Faculty of Business and Economics
The University of Hong Kong
(The Term of Office Began on

4 May 2020)

TIERSTE
IRIRE IR
BEpxE
(IE B 20205 H4 H 7 45)

KAABR QA

Mr Lee Hon-cheung
Managing Director

Worldwide Consulting Group Company

Limited
(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)

BB LiEL
Z5E
FE

Dr Gordon Tsui Luen On
Chairman

Hantec Group

TREEABRAT
BIRARERIER

Mr Thomas Wong
Founder & Chief Investment Officer
Optimas Capital Limited
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157 LA BB 55
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BREFRATERBH

Mr Joe Ngai

Senior Partner

Managing Partner, Greater China
McKinsey & Company, Incorporation
Hong Kong

BRI AE

EEREE AR

TR E

(1F B /12020 5 4 A Fi 15)

Mr Albert Wong Hak-keung
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks

Corporation
(The Term of Office Began on
4 May 2020)

TRELE
BB B
TR E

(HF A A320204F 5 4 H Fi45)

BEEBRAA

Mr Peter Yan King-shun

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited

(The Term of Office Began on

4 May 2020)
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KEER A Corporate Governance Committee

HEE R NATESERMANER - M%K% The Corporate Governance Committee advises the Board on
THEEMNEREBIRREEFAEZELHERZ  the overall policies and procedures relating to human resources,
B MEERNMEAERIEENIE  financal and administrative matters of the FSDC. It reviews the
MEIHM ZEERELBRA/NFETSE - FBE  organization structure and level of staff remuneration; examines
MPBHRE EBESERBOPBAMA N EIKE  the annual plan, budget and financial statements of the FSDC;
EECEEIPEEAMNET AKREABT  oversees the financial position and investment of funds of the
ERBITHREERLES - FSDC; recommends the appointment of external auditors; and
considers any administrative matters as and when necessary.

A £ A Convenor
ERBEE
ESBETMEBM
EBEFAEA
EFRTERIEF

Mr Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir
Senior Partner, Hong Kong

Vice Chairman, KPMG China

KPMG

X & Members

EREEL FRLCKRE
BEEEBRAF Temple Chambers
B, BORKERD

Dr Au King-lun Mr Laurence Li Lu-jen
President Senior Counsel

Value Partners Group Limited Temple Chambers

E A B B Ex-officio Member
REELEE
MEEBRERD
BWMER(MEEB)

Mr Chris Sun Yuk-han

Deputy Secretary for Financial Services & the Treasury (Financial Services) 1
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
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Revamp of Disclosure of Interests Regime under
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
— Recommendations (November 2019)

Striking an optimal balance between investor protection and an
efficient, transparent market has been a challenge to financial
regulators. To facilitate this role, the FSDC reviews Hong Kong's
financial regulations regularly and may revisit a particular subject
matter where necessary. In 2019/20, the FSDC looked again into
the disclosure of interests (“DOI") regime following the concerns
expressed by market practitioners.

Serving as an extension of the FSDC report published in December
2014 on the same subject matter, the report issued this year
discussed the challenges and complexity of the disclosure
requirements. The report also sets out a total of 18 areas within
the DOI regime where improvements could be made: (i) depositary
receipts; (ii) collective investment schemes, pension and provident
fund schemes, qualified overseas schemes; (iii) security trustee
business; (iv) Approved Lending Agent exemption; (v) global
custody; (vi) limited liability partnership; (vii) investment managers;
(viii) aggregation exemption; (ix) derivatives; (x) change in nature
of interest; (xi) transient interests of dealers in securities; (xii) cut-
off time for calculation of interest; (xiii) H-Shares and A-Shares;
(xiv) underwriting; (xv) de minimis exception; (xvi) wholly-owned
companies exemption; (xvii) trade date/settlement date; and (xviii)
scripless market.

These recommendations were aimed at enhancing the existing DOI
regime, which is now considered difficult to apply and subject to
a high risk of inadvertent and technical breach.
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Hong Kong as the Regional Wealth
Management Hub — Sector Survey Paper
(February 2020)

Private wealth management ("PWM") is one of the four key
themes that the FSDC placed emphasis on in 2019/20. While Hong
Kong has been a leading PWM hub within the region, the city is
facing complexities as the evolving regulatory requirements and
other factors (such as technology) are reshaping the overall sector
landscape.

Being the first-of-its-kind for the FSDC, this sector survey
paper studied how Hong Kong can leverage its fundamentals
to further expand the reach of its PWM market. As supported
by the market overview, together with feedback obtained from
industry practitioners as well as current and potential clients
through a survey and a series of focus group discussions,
the paper concluded Hong Kong is and has the potential to
maintain its prominence as a preferred PWM hub of the region.
The transparent

regulatory framework, technology-friendly

environment, availability of professional talents, as well as
proximity to the Mainland and experience in serving its market,
collectively attributed to the continued success of Hong Kong
as a PWM hub. Meanwhile, as client demands and external
environment evolve, it was the market’'s view that Hong Kong
should not rest on its laurel and has to develop a strategy in
approaching subject matters such as the rise of WealthTech and

shifting demand for talent.
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AN

As the paper is well regarded by the PWM sector, the FSDC
will conduct a follow-on study in 2020/21, looking into actions

needed to cement Hong Kong's role as the PWM hub.

To further strengthen Hong Kong's positioning as a regional PWM
hub, the FSDC plays a proactive role also in market promotion
and advocacy. For instance, the FSDC Chairman, Mr Laurence
Li was one of the panel speakers at the inaugural Family Office
Symposium at the Asian Financial Forum 2020 to explain why
Hong Kong is a preferred place for PWM businesses. Besides,
the FSDC will also collaborate with stakeholder in developing a
website portal to provide family offices which aspire to operate
in Hong Kong with more useful information.
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Insuring Hong Kong’s Future — Tax
Recommendations to Enhance and Grow Hong
Kong’s Insurance Industry (March 2020)

Review of Hong Kong's tax regime has been on the FSDC's
agenda over the years, for that the transparent, business-friendly
tax regime is one of the cornerstones for the success of this
international financial centre. With this in mind, the FSDC looked
particularly into the tax measures applicable to the insurance
industry during the year.

The report proposes tax recommendations intended for both
insurance companies and individual policyholders, with a view to
fostering the competitiveness of the insurance industry in Hong
Kong and encouraging Hong Kong citizens to better protect their
day-to-day health from risks and accidents through insurance.

The recommendations in this report are designed to support such
areas as general insurance, life insurance, reinsurance, insurance
brokerage and the management of investment of insurance funds.

-
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During 2019/20, the new developments on FSDC'’s research
reports include:

(1) Strengthening Hong Kong as a Leading
Global International Financial Centre
(November 2013)

—  To further enhance Hong Kong’s position as an asset and
wealth management hub by facilitating private equity funds
to set up in Hong Kong, the Government has finalised
the Limited Partnership Fund Bill to provide for a new
registration regime to enable funds to be constituted in
the form of limited partnerships in Hong Kong. The Bill
was gazetted on 20 March 2020 for introduction into and
approval by the Legislative Council.

— To continue enriching the talent pool in the financial
services industry, the Government has extended the Pilot
Programme to Enhance Talent Training for the Insurance
Sector and the Asset and Wealth Management Sector for
another three years until 2022-23.

(2) Development and Reform of Mainland
China’s Financial Sector and the
Strengthening and Enhancement of Hong
Kong'’s Pivotal Role as a Financial Centre
(November 2013)

—  The Mainland authorities announced the removal of quotas
under the Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (“QFII"”)
and RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (“RQFII")
programmes in September 2019. It would further enhance
the cross-boundary circulation and use of Renminbi (“RMB”)
funds between the Mainland and Hong Kong, deepen the
connectivity between the two markets and reinforce Hong
Kong's status as the global offshore RMB business hub.
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Proposals to Advance the Development
of Hong Kong as an Offshore Renminbi
Centre (November 2013)

To further deepen the mutual capital market access schemes
and promote the collaboration and interaction between the
financial markets, companies with weighted voting rights
structure as listed in Hong Kong under the new listing
regime could be included as eligible securities under the
Southbound Trading of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect
and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect upon fulfilment
of certain criteria with effect from 28 October 2019.

Developing Hong Kong as a Capital
Formation Centre for Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“REITs"”)
(November 2013)

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
("MPFA"), having considered the industry’s proposal, would
expand the use of listed REITs for MPF investment purpose.
This would facilitate the development of REITs in Hong
Kong.

Pilot Scheme for Training Courses (April
2014)

To continue enriching the talent pool in the financial
services industry, the Government has extended the Pilot
Programme to Enhance Talent Training for the Insurance
Sector and the Asset and Wealth Management Sector for
another three years until 2022-23.

Positioning Hong Kong as an International
IPO Centre of Choice (June 2014)

On 31 January 2020, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited ("HKEX") launched consultation on a proposal of
allowing corporate entities to possess weighted voting
rights, subject to additional conditions and investor
safeguards. Upon the end of the consultation period on 1
May 2020, HKEX will carefully consider the views collected

and decide on the way forward.

25
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(10) Policy Development Proposals on the

(11)

“Mainland and Hong Kong Closer
Economic Partnership Arrangement”
(September 2014)

The Agreement Concerning Amendment to the Mainland
and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement
Agreement on Trade in Services ("Amendment Agreement”)
was signed on 21 November 2019. It has further lowered
the market access thresholds and provided more facilitation
measures for Hong Kong enterprises and professional
sectors to tap into the business opportunities in the
Mainland market. The Amendment Agreement will be
implemented on 1 June 2020.

For the insurance sector, the Amendment Agreement
provides further liberalization measures for Hong Kong
insurance companies, insurance agency companies,
insurance brokerage companies and loss adjustors in
entering the Mainland market. In addition, on the basis
of regulatory equivalence, more relaxed requirements of
credit risk will be applied for Mainland insurance companies
ceding reinsurance businesses to qualified Hong Kong
insurers, and other preferential policies under equivalence
will continue be considered. It also supports Mainland
insurance companies issuing catastrophe bonds in the Hong

Kong market.

Developing Hong Kong as an Offshore
RMB-denominated Reinsurance Centre
(December 2014)

In July 2018, the Insurance Authority (“IA"”) reached a
consensus with the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (“CBIRC"”) to lower the capital requirements on
Mainland insurers when they ceded business to qualified
Hong Kong professional
This  will
Hong Kong reinsurers in obtaining insurance business from
Mainland. In July 2019, the CBIRC extended the preferential
treatment to 30 June 2020.

reinsurers (“the preferential

treatment”). increase the competitiveness of
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Developing Hong Kong’s Human Capital in
Financial Services (January 2015)

To continue enriching the talent pool in the financial
services industry, the Government has extended the Pilot
Programme to Enhance Talent Training for the Insurance
Sector and the Asset and Wealth Management Sector for
another three years until 2022-23.

Chinese Enterprises “Going Global”:
Opportunities and Hong Kong’s Policy
Responses (April 2015)

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
Comprehensive Avoidance of Double Taxation Agreements
("CDTAs")
Hong Kong has so far signed 43 CDTAs, including those

network as a business facilitation initiative.

signed with Cambodia, Estonia and the Macao Special
Administrative Region in 2019. Negotiations with more than
ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government hopes to
bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the end of 2022.

Strengthening Hong Kong as a Capital
Formation Centre for Exchange Traded
Funds (“ETF”) (October 2015)

As announced in the 2020-21 Budget, the Government will
expand the scope of the existing waiver of stamp duty on
stock transfers relating to ETFs to cover the stamp duty on
stock transfers involving the activities of ETF market makers
in the course of allotting and redeeming ETF units listed
in Hong Kong. This initiative will reduce the cost of ETF
market-making activities and hence narrow the spread, and
consequentially reduce the overall cost of ETF transactions.
It will provide incentives for ETF issuers to launch ETFs
tracking Hong Kong stocks in Hong Kong, and hence
drive the depth and liquidity of our market. The relevant
subsidiary legislation will come into operation on 1 August
2020.
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(17)

(22)

(23)

A Paper on Limited Partnership for Private
Equity Funds (December 2015)

To facilitate private equity funds to set up in Hong Kong,
the Government has finalised the Limited Partnership Fund
Bill to provide for a new registration regime to enable funds
to be constituted in the form of limited partnerships in
Hong Kong. The Bill was gazetted it on 20 March 2020 for
introduction into and approval by the Legislative Council.

Recommendations for Capitalising on
the Unique Advantages of Hong Kong in
the Process of Renminbi Capital Account
Convertibility (April 2016)

The People’s Bank of China (“PBoC"”) indicated in its China
Monetary Policy Report Quarter Two, 2019 that a regular
mechanism of central bank bill issuances in Hong Kong was
established to help improve the Hong Kong RMB bond yield
curve.

The Mainland authorities announced the removal of quotas
under the QFIl and RQFII programmes in September 2019.
It would further enhance the cross-boundary circulation and
use of RMB funds between the Mainland and Hong Kong,
deepen the connectivity between the two markets and
reinforce Hong Kong's status as the global offshore RMB
business hub.

Hong Kong as a Regional Green Finance
Hub (May 2016)

In April 2019, HKEX signed the Green Investment Principles
for the Belt and Road Initiative, which aims to incorporate
low-carbon and sustainable development practices into
investment projects in Belt and Road economies. It also
worked with the Hong Kong Green Finance Association to
publish “Our Guide to Green Bonds” in September 2019.
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The inaugural green bond of US$1 billion issued under the
Government Green Bond Programme in May 2019 was
well received by investors worldwide and set an important
new benchmark for potential issuers in Hong Kong and the
region. To further consolidate and develop Hong Kong's
position as a premier green finance hub in the region, the
Government plans to issue green bonds totalling HK$66
billion under the Programme in the five years from 2020-
21, having regard to the market situation.

In May 2019, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA")
introduced key measures on sustainable banking and
green finance, and announced the setup of the Centre for
Green Finance (“CGF”) under its Infrastructure Financing
Facilitation Office. As a member of the Central Banks and
Supervisors Network for Greening the Financial System,
HKMA also participates in the Network’s working groups
to explore how to incorporate climate risk and other green
and sustainable factors in the supervisory framework and
macro surveillance work. In October 2019, CGF and the
International Finance Corporation, a member of the World
Bank Group, co-organised a seminar on greening financial
institutions.

The coverage of the Green Finance Certification Scheme
of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency was
extended to include green funds in September 2019,
further strengthening market confidence in green financial
products.

(25) The 13th Five-Year Plan: Opportunities

for the Hong Kong Financial Industry and
Policy Recommendations (December 2016)

In April 2019, HKEX signed the Green Investment Principles
for the Belt and Road Initiative, which aims to incorporate
low-carbon and sustainable development practices into
investment projects in Belt and Road economies.
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The Government introduced an amendment bill into the
Legislative Council in December 2019 to provide tax
incentive to promote the development of marine insurance
and underwriting of specialty risks. The Government
also published in the Gazette in March 2020 another
amendment bill to facilitate the issuance of insurance-
linked securities in Hong Kong and expand the scope of
insurable risks by captive insurers set up in Hong Kong.
These measures will enhance the competitiveness of Hong
Kong insurance industry to develop its risk management
businesses to meet the emerging needs arising from the
Belt and Road Initiative

(26) A Paper on Tax Issues Affecting Hong

Kong to Become a Preferred Location

for Regional and International Financial
Institutions to Originate and Trade
International Financial Products (December
2016)

The Inland Revenue Department issued Departmental
Interpretation and Practice Notes on transfer pricing in July
2019 with a view to facilitating taxpayers’ compliance with
the relevant rules.

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's CDTA
network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong Kong
has so far signed 43 CDTAs, including those signed with
Cambodia, Estonia and the Macao Special Administrative
Region in 2019. Negotiations with more than ten
jurisdictions are underway. The Government hopes to bring

the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the end of 2022.
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(27) Turning Crisis into Opportunities:

Hong Kong as an Insurance Hub with
Development Focuses on Reinsurance,
Marine and Captive (March 2017)

In July 2018, the IA reached a consensus with the CBIRC to
lower the capital requirements on Mainland insurers when
they ceded business to Hong Kong qualified professional
reinsurers (“the preferential treatment”). This will increase
the competitiveness of Hong Kong reinsurers in obtaining
insurance business from the Mainland. In July 2019, the
CBIRC extended the preferential treatment to 30 June
2020.

In November 2019, the Central Government introduced
a series of policy measures to support the development
of Greater Bay Area, including preferential treatment on
insurance regulation (i.e. lowering the capital requirement
on Mainland insurers when they cede business to qualified
Hong Kong professional reinsurers) and supporting
Mainland insurers to issue catastrophe bonds in Hong Kong.

To seize new business opportunities arising from the Belt
and Road Initiatives, as well as to enhance Hong Kong's
competitiveness as an insurance and reinsurance hub,
a captive domicile and a risk management centre, the
Government introduced or gazetted three amendment bills
in 2019-20 -

(@)  to provide tax incentive to promote the development
of marine insurance and underwriting of specialty
risks;

(b)  to provide for a streamlined regulatory framework to
facilitate the issuance of insurance-linked securities,
and expand the scope of insurable risks of captive
insurers in Hong Kong; and

(0 to enhance the regulatory framework for the

regulation of insurance groups where a holding
company for the group is incorporated in Hong Kong.
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To continue enriching the talent pool in the financial
services industry, the Government has extended the Pilot
Programme to Enhance Talent Training for the Insurance
Sector and the Asset and Wealth Management Sector for
another three years until 2022-23.

(28) Optimising Hong Kong'’s Listed Structured

Products Market (April 2017)

A number of new structured products were launched in
2019 to further develop Hong Kong into a trading hub for
structured products. For example, the first Two-Time Inverse
Product, the first actively-managed ETF and the first Inline
Warrant were listed in May, June and July 2019 respectively.
Weekly Index Options (including Weekly Hang Seng Index
Options and Weekly Hang Seng China Enterprises Index
Options) and Indian Rupee Currency Futures were also
launched in September and November 2019 respectively.

(29) The Future of FinTech in Hong Kong (May

2017)

The Government and financial regulators adopt a multi-
pronged approach in promoting and facilitating Fintech
development A number of major Fintech initiatives have
been rolled out in the past year, including —
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Fintech Infrastructure and Talent:

To promote wide adoption of the Faster Payment
System (“FPS”) and provide greater convenience
to the public, since 1 November 2019, the public
can settle the bills issued by three government
departments through mobile banking apps and
e-wallets that support FPS payment. As the next
step, the Government is planning to accept payments
through the FPS at counters and self-help kiosks of
certain Departments on a pilot basis.

To further facilitate Fintech development in Hong
Kong, the Government announced two new initiatives
in the 2019 Policy Address, namely (a) to collaborate
with Cyberport to strengthen the Fintech training for
in-service financial practitioners; and (b) to set up
an in-town Fintech event space for various Fintech
stakeholders to host events and exchange ideas and
to drive Fintech demand and business opportunities.

Banking Sector:

HKMA has granted licences to eight virtual banks
in the first half of 2019. As at end of March 2020,
one virtual bank has commenced business. For Open
Application on Programming Interface (“API”), as of
the end of January 2020, over 760 registrations from
third-party service providers to access banks’ Phase |
(product information) Open APIs had been recorded.
Twenty retail banks also launched Phase Il (customer
acquisition) Open APIs in October 2019. HKMA will
continue to work closely with the banking industry
on defining a detailed set of technical standards for
Phase Il (account information) and IV (transactions)
Open APIs.

Insurance Sector:

The IA authorised the second virtual insurer under the
Fast Track in October 2019, which owns and operates
solely digital distribution channels to carry on non-
life insurance business. The IA has become a member
of the Global Financial Innovation Network in June
2019.
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° Securities Sector:
(“SFC")
published a new licensing framework for virtual asset

The Securities and Futures Commission

trading platforms in November 2019. Platforms that
operate in Hong Kong and offer trading of at least
one security token may now apply to be licensed by
SFC, subject to a set of robust regulatory standards
comparable to those applied to licensed securities
brokers and automated trading venues.

(30) Hong Kong — Building Trust Using

(31)

Distributed Ledger Technology (May 2017)

The trade finance platform, eTradeConnect, is the first
large-scale multi-bank blockchain project in Hong Kong,
which aims to improve overall trade efficiency, reduce risks
and fraud by digitising trade documents and automating
trade finance processes. The proof-of-concept (“PoC")
to connect eTradeConnect and a European trade finance
platform was recently completed. A Memorandum of
Understanding was signed between the operators of
eTradeConnect and the PBoC Trade Finance Platform
to conduct a PoC trial with an aim to connect the two

platforms.

Recommendations for Developing Hong
Kong as an Aircraft Leasing and Financing
Hub (July 2017)

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's CDTA
network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong Kong
has so far signed 43 CDTAs, including those signed with
Cambodia, Estonia and the Macao Special Administrative

Region in 2019. Negotiations with more than ten

jurisdictions are underway. The Government hopes to bring

the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the end of 2022.
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—  The dedicated tax regime for aircraft leasing activities in
Hong Kong introduced by the Government in July 2017
has been well-received by the global aircraft leasing and
financing industry. A number of major industry players
from the Mainland of China and overseas have set up
their subsidiaries/operating arm in Hong Kong including
three of the top ten aircraft leasing companies in the
world. According to industry feedback, aircraft leasing
deals of over 80 aircraft have been based on the Hong
Kong platform so far, involving lessors/lessees around the
world (including the Mainland of China, Chile, Cambodia,
Indonesia, Japan, South Korea, Malaysia, Qatar and
Vietnam).

(34) Maritime Leasing Paper (May 2018)

—  The Task Force on Ship Leasing was set up under the Hong
Kong Maritime and Port Board in late 2018 to devise the
details of tax measures to promote the development of ship
leasing in Hong Kong.

—  The Task Force completed its study on ship leasing tax
measures in 2019, and relevant legislative amendments
(i.e. the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (Ship Leasing Tax
Concessions) Bill 2020) were introduced into the Legislative
Council in March 2020.

— As a next step, the Task Force will undertake in 2020 a
study on tax measures to attract more global shipping
business operators and commercial principals to set up
business in Hong Kong and the target is to complete the
study in about a year’s time.

—  The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's CDTA
network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong Kong
has so far signed 43 CDTAs, including those signed with
Cambodia, Estonia and the Macao Special Administrative
Region in 2019. Negotiations with more than ten
jurisdictions are underway. The Government hopes to bring
the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the end of 2022.
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(36) Environmental, Social and Governance

(ESG) Strategy for Hong Kong (November
2018)

Securities Sector:

SFC has been implementing its Strategic Framework for
Green Finance since September 2018, including issuing a
guidance to enhance the disclosure of green and ESG funds
in April 2019 and launching an online database to raise their
visibility. In December 2019, it published a survey report on
integrating ESG and climate risks in asset management.

HKEX launched a consultation in May 2019 on proposals
to amend the ESG Reporting Guide and related Listing
Rules with a view to further improving issuers’ governance
and disclosure of ESG activities and its conclusions were
published in December 2019. The changes to the ESG
Reporting Guide and related Listing Rules will be effective
for the financial years commencing on or after 1 July 2020.

HKEX published ESG e-training and guidance materials in
May 2019 and March 2020 to assist listed companies in
ESG reporting.

HKMA:

As the investment manager of the Exchange Fund, HKMA
adopts a guiding principle that priority will generally be
given to ESG investments if long-term risk-adjusted return
is comparable to other investments. It has been weaving
ESG factors into its investment process for both public
and private market investments and seeks to collaborate
with like-minded investors to promote ESG standards in
investment process.
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MPFA:

In June 2019, MPFA invited MPF trustees, in their role as
asset owners, to participate in an SFC survey on integrating
ESG factors and climate risks in asset management and
gathered information on MPF trustees’ readiness on
the integration of ESG factors and climate risks in asset

management.

In October 2019, the International Organisation of Pension
Supervisors (“IOPS”) provided guidelines to encourage
supervisory authorities to require pension funds under
their supervision to integrate ESG factors in pension funds’
investment and risk management process. As a member of

IOPS, MPFA would consider how to adopt the guidelines.

(37) Enhancing Hong Kong’s Role as a Leading

Life Insurance Centre (December 2018)

In October 2019, IA became the Group-wide Supervisor
for Prudential Plc, after its demerger. This has consolidated
Hong Kong's position as a regional insurance hub.

The Government published an amendment bill in the
in March 2020 to enhance the
framework for the regulation of insurance groups where

Gazette regulatory
a holding company for the group is incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The Government has offered tax concessions since April
2019 to encourage members of the public to save for their
retirement. From the year of assessment 2019-20 onwards,
taxpayers are entitled to tax deductions under salaries
tax and personal assessment for their premiums paid to
qualifying deferred annuities and contributions made to tax
deductible Mandatory Provident Fund voluntary contribution
accounts, subject to a maximum tax deductible limit of
$60,000 each year per taxpayer.
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The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's CDTA
network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong Kong
has so far signed 43 CDTAs, including those signed with
Cambodia, Estonia and the Macao Special Administrative
Region in 2019. Negotiations with more than ten
jurisdictions are underway. The Government hopes to bring
the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the end of 2022.

(38) Mandatory Provident Fund System — The

Way Forward (February 2019)

Since its launch in December 2000, the MPF System has
been continually refined and reformed for more effective
fulfilment of its role as an important pillar of retirement
protection for the working population in Hong Kong.

eMPF Platform:

Since 2017, the Government and MPFA have been working
on the eMPF Platform project to facilitate standardization,
streamlining and automation of MPF scheme administration
processes to maximise operational efficiency so as to make
room for fee reduction, and to create a predominantly
paperless MPF experience. MPFA released the Request
for Proposal package for the eMPF Platform project on 9
December 2019 to openly invite interested tenderers to
submit proposals on or before 29 April 2020. The tender is
targeted to be awarded in the second half of 2020, with a
view to completing the development of the eMPF Platform
by 2022 at the earliest and the on-boarding to the eMPF
Platform by all MPF trustees by phases thereafter.
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Governance and Oversight of MPF Schemes:

Further to the implementation of the Governance Principles
for MPF Trustees in November 2018, MPFA requested the
trustees in 2019 to conduct self-assessment regarding
whether their existing governance framework and
arrangements adhere to the Governance Principles. In areas
where gaps are identified, trustees are required to put
forward an action plan. MPFA observed that the majority
of trustees have already taken measures to enhance the
independence of the board, for example, by appointing
more than one independent non-executive director on the
board.

In early 2020, MPFA organised a Seminar on MPF Trustees’
Governance to further promulgate the importance of having
a sound governance framework. MPFA also encouraged
trustees to further strengthen their governance which
include, among other things, enhancing the board oversight
and provision of financial education to scheme members.
The seminar was well received by industry participants.

The MPF Schemes Ordinance:

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Amendment)
Bill 2019 was first read in the Legislative Council on 23
October 2019. The Bill seeks to give MPFA power to set
up a wholly owned subsidiary as the legal entity to build,
own and operate the eMPF Platform. It will also enable
MPFA to require MPF trustees to pay the statutory annual
registration fee at a level of 0.03% of the net asset value
of an MPF scheme. The Government is working on further
amendments to the Ordinance to provide for, among other
things, the safe, smooth and efficient operation of the eMPF
Platform and administration of the MPF Schemes.
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MPF Contribution and Investment:

(41)

The introduction of tax-deductible voluntary contributions
("TVC") from the 2019-20 year of assessment has seen MPF
scheme members making contributions of over $1.7 billion
under the arrangement from April 2019 to March 2020,
adding further to their retirement reserves. As at 31 March
2020, there were over 38,000 TVC accounts.

The Default Investment Strategy (“DIS”) was launched in
2017 to standardise the default investment arrangements
of all MPF schemes. It represents a breakthrough whereby
the Government adopted a proactive policy stance to create
an optimal retirement savings solution using a “default
choice architecture” combined with a “fee cap”. As at 31
March 2020, as many as 22.5% of the total number of
MPF accounts were partly or fully invested according to the
DIS or were invested in its two constituent funds, involving
$47.4 billion, or 5.5% of total MPF assets. While well
received by MPF scheme members in Hong Kong, the DIS
is also hailed by the international community, such as the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
and International Organisation of Pension Supervisors, as
an effective option for long-term retirement savings.

Insuring Hong Kong’s Future — Tax
Recommendations to Enhance and Grow
Hong Kong’s Insurance Industry (March
2020)

To keep our business environment conducive to insurance
business and help the insurance industry seize new
opportunities, the Government introduced an amendment
bill into the Legislative Council in December 2019. The
bill seeks to provide 50% profits tax relief (i.e. the tax
rate will be 8.25%) for all general reinsurance business of
direct insurers, selected general insurance business of direct
insurers and selected insurance brokerage business. It will
promote the development of marine insurance and speciality
insurance in Hong Kong.
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The FSDC has been stepping up efforts to engage the industry
by strengthening contact with existing partners and continuously
reaching out to local and overseas industry players through
engagement meetings and luncheons. Market practitioners,
chambers of commerce and industry associations were invited to
exchange views on the strategic directions for development of the
financial services industry of Hong Kong and explore opportunities
for future collaborations. The insights received were important for
the FSDC to refine the strategies and focuses of its development

in response to the industry needs.
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Industry outreach luncheons and meetings organised in 2019/20 included:

9.5.2019 EAEEPe

The American Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong
21.5.2019 XPREBELREZRIEZES

U.S.-China Economic and Security Review Commission
3.7.2019 EANEEBERTA

Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation
8.7.2019 EEREEGLNE

Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
8.7.2019 ERBBEEEERAR

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
9.7.2019 ERRITES

The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
9.7.2019 BEMABETEERR

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
10.7.2019 EBFAPEEKEREZES

Securities and Futures Commission
17.7.2019 RITH T EREEEER

Shenzhen Municipal Financial Regulatory Bureau
29.7.2019 RY| & RIS E B R R

Shenzhen Financial Stability Board
1.8.2019 EEBHFRHEER

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
1.8.2019 BAEBRSRBE®RD O

Japan Centre for International Finance
6.8.2019 hEXRELE

China-United States Exchange Foundation
14.8.2019 FELAGEARRES

Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation
5.9.2019 BMaRREREAET — 2RER

United Nations Environment Programme — Finance Initiative
6.9.2019 EEcRMRBE

FinTech Association of Hong Kong
10.9.2019 BREATSHE

International Capital Market Association
13.9.2019 DMERRERAE

Infrastructure Asia
23.9.2019 HARKERE

World Economic Forum
24.9.2019 DTHNBFFEZECRTESHE

Asia Securities Industry & Financial Markets Association
24.9.2019 WEEHRE

The Investor Agenda
10.10.2019 FEFTEHERHE

Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong
11.10.2019 FHESFHEE

Y.Elites Association
16.10.2019 ERemiRRERS

Greater Bay Area FinTech Promotion Association
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29.10.2019

11.11.2019

12.11.2019

19.11.2019

20.11.2019

3.12.2019

9.12.2019

16.12.2019

16.1.2020

17.1.2020

20.1.2020

EMNERBHRAES

Institute of Financial Technologists of Asia
HTRITRBE

Swiss Bankers Association

i+ &’ P

Swiss Finance Institute
BANERETHNESZERERSE
Trade and Investment Queensland
KRB € RS

FinCity.Tokyo

ECEIEE

The British Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong
EPmERER

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
EETHERR

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EREBFNKRERS®

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
BERRITRE

The Hong Kong Association of Banks
EEMRONMMBS

The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts

ERBE

INDUSTRY OUTREACH
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The FSDC has been deploying multiple channels to enhance the
profile of Hong Kong'’s financial services industry, highlight the
unique advantages of Hong Kong as an international financial
centre and promote the city as a destination of choice for the
global and Mainland financial services corporations to set up their
office.

During the year, we continued to organise and participate in
a number of high-profile market promotion activities, among
many others, by partnering with stakeholders of the financial
services industry. Locally, the FSDC actively participated in the
Asian Financial Forum, the Belt and Road Summit, Hong Kong
FinTech Week and the UN Climate Finance and Sustainable
Investing Conference 2019. On the Mainland, we joined SmartHK
in Guangzhou and the Hong Kong-Shanghai forum in Shanghai.
Internationally, we ventured into North America and Europe
through the initiatives of “Think Asia, Think Hong Kong” and the
Hong Kong-Swiss Financial Seminar.

We also promoted the industry by strengthening our digital
presence. We extended our reach of the target audience through
social media. Amid the Coronavirus Disease 2019 outbreak, we
sought to connect with the investors online.

Besides, the FSDC launched a marketing brochure to tell the story
of Hong Kong’s financial services industry in a more engaging

way.
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Promotional events

Local

Asian Financial Forum

The FSDC co-sponsored the Asian Financial Forum, the 13th of
its kind, on 13 and 14 January 2020 by hosting a breakfast panel
again. Mr Laurence Li of the FSDC, opened the session by sharing
that ESG as well as FinTech were the key trends that would shape
the development of the financial services industry.

Moderated by Ms Winnie Wong of the FSDC and entitled “Hong
Kong's Changing Role as an Investment Gateway: New Trend, New
Generation and New Strategy”, the panel examined new strategies
that investors should consider vis-a-vis technology advancement,
sustainability, talent development and the current business
environment. The speakers namely Mr James Lau, Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury and Mr Andrew Weir and Mr
Jim Lai of the FSDC discussed Hong Kong's role as an investment
gateway which connects Mainland China and the rest of the
world amid the new trends. The session was attended by over
500 international business and financial services professionals from

around the world.

N
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Belt and Road Summit

As a supporting organisation for the Belt and Road Summit 2019,
the FSDC co-hosted a breakout luncheon with the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in September. Chaired by Ms Diana Cesar of
the FSDC and joined by Ms Ding Chen and Dr Wang Tao of the
FSDC and other industry experts, the panel discussed the role of
Hong Kong as an ideal fundraising hub for Belt and Road projects
given its highly developed banking industry, syndication and
bond markets, international network and deep pool of expertise.
The panel was attended by nearly 300 financial and business
professionals.

W
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Hong Kong FinTech Week

The FSDC continued to show its support to the Hong Kong FinTech
Week organised by InvestHK in November 2019 by hosting a panel
discussion on “The Adoption of Technology in Asset and Wealth
Management.” In delivering the opening remarks, Mr Joseph
Chan, Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury,
outlined the Government'’s initiatives to spur the development of
FinTech. The panel, chaired by Mr Christopher Hui of the FSDC,
and joined by speakers including Mr Emmanuel Pitsilis of the
FSDC, looked into the key issues and challenges for entrepreneurs
and start-ups in applying technology and preparing for evolving
regulation of the asset and wealth management sector. The panel
attracted nearly 200 participants.

e
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UN Climate Finance and Sustainable Investing Conference
2019

The FSDC supported the UN Climate Finance and Sustainable
Investing Conference 2019 co-organised by United Nations
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and Pacific and World
Green Organisation in October 2019. Addressing an audience
of over 400 consisting mainly high-level representatives of the
Governments and financial institutions in the region, Mr Laurence
Li of the FSDC delivered a keynote speech on how infrastructure
financing and the public-private partnership model can support
sustainable development. As a supporting organisation, the FSDC
also promoted the event in our network.

o
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Mainland

SmartHK

The FSDC joined hands with InvestHK to host a panel session at
SmartHK event in Guangzhou, China in August 2019. The session
explored the FinTech development in Greater Bay Area as well
as the themes of virtual banking, blockchain and FinTech talent
development.

N
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Hong Kong-Shanghai forum

In November 2019, Mr Laurence Li, Mr Christopher Hui and Ms
Ding Chen of the FSDC attended a seminar at the 15th Hong
Kong-Shanghai Forum organised by Shanghai Municipal Committee,
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and Better Hong Kong
Foundation. They joined the discussion on how Hong Kong and
Shanghai can deepen mutual cooperation with a view to enhancing
the core competitiveness of both cities.

Global

Think Asia, Think Hong Kong

The FSDC again joined “Think Asia, Think Hong Kong” event by
organising a thematic session in September 2019 in Los Angeles,
United States. At the panel hosted by Mr Christopher Hui of the
FSDC, speakers including Ms Bonnie Chan of the FSDC told the
audience the investment outlook for Asia, Hong Kong being the
investment gateway to the Mainland for international investors with
products and opportunities in both public and private markets to
satisfy different risk appetites and the growth potential brought by
the Belt and Road Initiative and the Greater Bay Area.

AN
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Hong Kong-Swiss Financial Seminar

In November 2019, the FSDC joined a panel at the 3rd Hong
Kong-Swiss Financial Seminar organised by the Swiss Bankers
Association and the Private Wealth Management Association of
Hong Kong in Bern, Switzerland. Mr Christopher Hui of the FSDC,
shared Hong Kong's experience in training and attracting the best
talent for the financial services industry at the panel.

-~
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Promotional events organised by the FSDC / participated by sending FSDC representatives to deliver speeches in
2019/20 included:

11.4.2019 AAVMEEBELASXREHERES

Private Wealth Management Association’s Leadership Cocktail

FRE: CERARESEMAVEERXERLRERNTIE

Topic: FSDC's Work on Fostering Growth and Development of Private Wealth Management Industry
in Hong Kong

EE B ERFELCAELE

Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

27.4.2019 EEER —BERAKREEHGRBERNKBELE
Qiaoqing Roundtable

T ZEFNEE XHEERXEREWERR

Topic: Opportunities and Challenges of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area’s
Coordinated Development

#EE B ERFEILCELE

Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

18.5.2019 FESCERGE2019ERER | 2RES

Tsinghua Entrepreneur and Executive Club’s Annual Dinner

T 2 [ B S M B Pk B

Topic: Financial Opportunities and Challenges of the Greater Bay Area
EE B ERFELCELE

Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

26.6.2019 KETEBHFTE

Hong Kong Seminar in Suwon

FE: WMEFNBEELRFARSIIE?

Topic: How to Use Hong Kong Financial Platform to Attract Foreign Investment?
#E T EHERBEEL

Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
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5.7.2019

T

Topic:

BEE
Speaker:

2.8.2019

T

Topic:

ABE
Speaker:

27.8.2019

FE:
Topic:
FTHF:

Moderator:

ERRSMAANBRAEEERREES
HKEX Launch of Inline Warrants &
Cocktail Party
CERBIFBHELAANE

FSDC Supports the Launch of Inline
Warrants

T EBNE B L

Mr Mark Dickens, FSDC

IERNBRERBEREREEE AT
Beo¥XMRBFERAE
Jiangmen-Hong Kong-Macau Financial
Services and Incubation

of Unicorn Companies Conference
MRrermERENERREM

The Way Forward in Development of
TechFin in Hong Kong

& FRFFIEFEE

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

BRI A R EBWIE - EIMN2019
SmartHK Guangzhou 2019

TRE B ER

miZiE

MARKET PROMOTION

AN

W

AN

FinTech Development in the Greater Bay Area — What Role for Hong Kong?

& FRATIFFHEE
Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC
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28.8.2019

F&#:
Topic:

EE
Speaker:

12.9.2019

Bl
Topic:
TH:
Moderator:

AE

Speakers:

20.9.2019

F A
Topic:
TH:
Moderator:
EE
Speaker:

22.9.2019

F&:
Topic:
AE
Speaker:

54

ixElREREAE

Launch Event of ixCircle

& B V) B 1b 5 9 H 5 B Pk B
Opportunities and Challenges of
Startups in Hong Kong

& BBEFFIEFIEE
Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

AN

— % —B% 5 1% 182019

Belt and Road Summit 2019

FEE T ROBBREESRL

Hong Kong as an International Capital Formation Centre for Belt and Road
T ERMAEEL L

Ms Diana Cesar, FSDC

eEBTRXL

e BRI EEL

Ms Ding Chen, FSDC

Dr Wang Tao, FSDC

[BEEDEN EEFB| XH

“Think Asia, Think Hong Kong”, USA
MEESE DMNKRERS

Think Finance, Think Hong Kong: Investing in Asia
& EEEFIEF L

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

& ERRPREX L

Ms Bonnie Chan, FSDC

FEEMIRRERFTHRE

Opening Ceremony of the 30th Leadership Training Course
HREBERAEBRBEEARKTERMREFTENEENT

Economic Perspectives vs Real World, and Importance of FinTech to Hong Kong

T EBFELCKELE
Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
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11.10.2019

F#:
Topic:
ETE
Speaker:

18.10.2019

FE:
Topic:
HE
Speaker:

1.11.2019

EE
Topic:
B
Speaker:

T
Topic:
#EE
Speaker:

7.11.2019

F&E:
Topic:
T

Moderator:
BEE
Speaker:

NS ASE20195 S

CPA Congress 2019
EHREBEHARR — BRI KRR

The Future of Global Economy — Today and Beyond
& FFEFIEF L

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

BEBERIERLLRMERTFERE2019EBRSEH

UN Climate Finance and Sustainable Investing Conference 2019
EWRiaEE BRI EBIE

Infrastructure Financing and Public-private Partnership

L HEBFELELE
Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

EEEid
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EEREESNEFEBEFS
Hong Kong Investment Funds
Association’s 13th Annual
Conference
BERNERERSS

Greater Bay Area Development Plan

= EEERBEL
Dr King Au, FSDC

BERKNERRESGES

Greater Bay Area and ESG Integration \
EERFRELCAE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

EREEB K E2019

Hong Kong FinTech Week 2019
EEMEEEXHMENER

The Adoption of Technology in Asset and Wealth Management
& BEEFIEF L

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

% /G Emmanuel Pitsilis % 4
Mr Emmanuel Pitsilis, FSDC
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8.11.2019

F&#:
Topic:
EEE
Speaker:

18.11.2019

&

Topic:

EE
Speaker:

9.12.2019

T

Topic:

EE
Speaker:

56

ERMAFMAE — EEEBEREE

Financial Innovation Seminar — Connecting France and Hong Kong
EREREMNEBRBRFPLEZEESRBMRERTENEIE

Hong Kong as a FinTech Hub in Asia, and Its Collaboration in FinTech Development with France
B EBFEICEE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

ERAEEREWERIED

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce’s Town Hall Forum Series
FMKAERBERAREZEN S ERNEBEZ LA ERE —

RGERAE BEFERRNZEMABES - BB KESGES

Four Key Research Topics of Incorporated FSDC —

Family Office, Greater Bay Area and Mainland Opportunities, FinTech, and ESG Integration
EHRBFELCELE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

ARARERMABHEENEETEHESE — LENREBTVESHLRIE RN
Association of Certified Anti-money Laundering Specialists’ 11th Annual Hong Kong
Symposium — Enhanced AML and Financial Crime Tools & Techniques
HEFORBRKYCEF TR NABFHRERORMERR 2 HILERR

Digital Identity and eKYC: How to Look at the Growing Technology Requirements and Financial Crime
Risks

& FRFFIEFE %

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

W
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9.1.2020
F#:
Topic:

#E
Speaker:

10.1.2020

FE:
Topic:

EE
Speaker:

14.1.2020

i

Topic:

FHF:

Moderator:

AE

Speakers:

ESBEBOKERNE

Tradelink’s Identity Verification Seminar
KYCEFFEEEMRERRAP

Digital KYC Issues and Remote Onboarding
& ERMERELE

Mr Jeremy Lam, FSDC

BERREBRBEMNIZETBE
BESGRER L |RFIEE
Cementing Hong Kong as an ESG
Investment Hub Series — FSDC x
MPFA Session
HERESGIRE ? RAESGIREBXE
BRESGHRE M HEB BT F?
ESG Investment: What, Why and How

EEEid
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& BEFIEFILE

Mr Christopher Hui, FSDC

3 M & B R 12020

Asian Financial Forum 2020
EEREBEREPHNAG: B
STAB T - BTN BT B Topic
Hong Kong’s Changing Role as an ET
Investment Gateway: Speaker:
New Trend, New Generation and New

Strategy

e HeEFHEKL

Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC

Bl s ERRE T /B = B 15 H) 75 4
T ERELHEEL

&/ REE L

Mr James Lau, Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

Mr Andrew Weir, FSDC

Mr Jim Lai, FSDC

BEREERKEMRAER L

Hong Kong as a Family Office Hub
EEEFREILCALE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
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Expanding digital reach

We started utilising social media platforms to communicate with
our target audience, which comprises primarily business leaders
and professionals of different sectors of the financial industry,
by creating the official FSDC page on LinkedIn and Twitter and
keeping the market abreast of the FSDC's latest initiatives.

As the pandemic forced the industry to suspend physical events,
we promoted the strengths of Hong Kong's private wealth
management sector and open-ended fund company regime by
hosting an online seminar on WIND, a financial media platform,
in March 2020. Close to 500 Mainland investors listened to the
webinar.

// o — J \\
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ELEENBERER PO Showcasing Hong Kong as an IFC

FR - HMERRAIVESESAIERKIMNE  During the year, we portrayed Hong Kong's image as a top-

BT EHEBERBERSHBFB LB tier financial centre by launching a marketing brochure entitled

g ZHEREBNEGES - SMME  “Hong Kong — Financing the future” which highlights the city’s

HEE - BIETENE  URRKREEMEREZE  rule of law, superb connectivity, innovation and technology and

7o BAPIINEME TR AR/ T - IAEIEZR  development potential in the Greater Bay Area. An abridged

BEREBNBRFEY - version was also developed to showcase Hong Kong's competitive
edges in numbers.

o
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International engagement

To raise the international profile of Hong Kong and to enable the
FSDC to forge closer relations and benefit from the sharing of
best practices with its overseas counterparts, the FSDC joined the
World Alliance of International Financial Centers (“WAIFC"”) on 24
October 2019.

As the WAIFC's first and only member in China, we helped to
facilitate the exchange among members through contributing to
the publication of the WAIFC about the role of financial centres
in driving economic growth; organising a meeting for Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury and Chairman of the
FSDC to update WAIFC on the situation of Hong Kong and how
the city can further collaborate with other financial centres; and
sharing with members on Hong Kong's experience in tackling the
coronavirus outbreak.

W
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Talent is key to the success of any international financial centre, and
Hong Kong is no exception. As part of our effort to support human
capital development and the capacity building of home-growth
professionals in the financial services industry, the FSDC has been
running various events and seminars through collaboration with
tertiary institutions and industry leaders in Hong Kong. The events
aimed to help tertiary students and young graduates navigate the
changing financial services industry landscape and identify the
skillsets and mindsets sought after for a career in finance amid
new trends of the industry. To give students real-life exposure to
the workplace of a financial institution, the FSDC has rolled out
the TAP designed to provide opportunities to shadow some FSDC
members.
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Career Day

Career Day has been a flagship human capital initiative of the
FSDC. On 26 October 2019, we successfully held the sixth of
this event for tertiary students interested in job prospects and
challenges opened up by the financial services industry. Mr
Laurence Li of the FSDC kicked off the event by delivering an
opening remark, followed by the keynote address given by Mr

AN
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Tim Lui, Chairman of the SFC.

AN

Two panel discussions, with a total of nine distinguished speakers,

were featured at the event. The first panel entitled “Career in
Finance”, offered practical tips to students on how to prepare for
a successful career in different financial sectors. In the second one
“Technology and Innovation in Finance”, speakers with finance
background relating to technology explained the importance and
channels for students to equip themselves with technological

o

knowledge.
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The popular CV Clinic returned this year, with human resources

professionals from banking, asset management, private
equity, insurance, FinTech, accounting and market settlement
sectors providing students with one-on-one advisory services
on CV drafting and interview techniques. Participating firms
included Bowtie Life Insurance Company Limited, Ernst &
Young, Euroclear Bank (Hong Kong Branch), HKEX, KPMG,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited, The Bank of East Asia, Limited, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and Zurich Insurance (Hong

Kong).

The Career Day was well attended by about 400 participants.

W W
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A D E R E Human capital seminars
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As part of our continuous effort to develop human capital for the industry, the FSDC continued to organise the

BEERRBEABRERRNEL

BER XANKHERBY ¥

Practitioner Speakers Series and other seminars for local tertiary institutions. Seasoned industry professionals were

invited to share their practical experience, update on latest trends in their respective sectors and advise tertiary

students on their career planning. Seven seminars were organised in 2019/20.

201920F ER MM B XM IS R

Career seminars organised in 2019/20 included:

21.10.2019

B

Topic:

HE

Speakers.

24.10.2019

T &
Topic:
ABE

Speakers.

64

BEEBLCKE

Hong Kong Shue Yan University
TRIB R ERBERMOBE R
MERE

Trends and Career Prospect in relation
to FinTech and Blockchain

BEBHE LTI

BB EABEEE %L

Mr Philip Chiu, FSDC
Mr Peter Woo, Hong Kong Blockchain 50(/6'1‘}/\

BEENEKRE

The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology
REHMXNBE N EKE

Trends and Career Prospect in InsurTech
e HFEEFEXT

1R F) 5 B 7€ 4
EHREFHETLE

Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC

Mr Alan Lau, WeSure
Mr Harrison Li, FWD \

o
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FE:
Topic:
EE

Speakers.

14.1.2020

F#:
Topic:
#E
Speaker:

14.1.2020

F#:
Topic:
AE
Speaker:
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e
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EREEKRE

Hong Kong Baptist University
BEEEMRERBORERSE

Career Prospects in Asset Management and Investment Sector
R HRFERLLE

e HFRERRELLE

Mr James Tam, FSDC

Mr Thomas Wong, FSDC

EREZSRER

Hong Kong Trade Development Council*

RUBE RBEANEREE

Think Finance Think Hong Kong: Unlock Your Career in Finance
wEEEITIUEE

Mr Stephen Wong, FSDC

EREZRER

Hong Kong Trade Development Council*
EENBIEREX

Entrepreneurship and Venture Capital in Hong Kong
BERRMBEHZ L

Ms Jessie Lin, SenseTime
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Speakers: Mr Rocky Tung, FSDC
Ms Ellie Tang, New World Development Company Limited
26.3.2020 FEDNMAE
The Open University of Hong Kong
ES [RE - HERERIMHEEBRERELPERANURRENFEE
Topic: Arising Regional Opportunities in ESG and Its Applications in Financial Industry
#E & FHRIHFSLLE
T EHE—ELE
Speakers. Mr Pat-nie Woo, FSDC
Mr Rocky Tung, FSDC
* The seminars were held as side programme of Asian Financial Forum run by Hong Kong Trade Development Council.
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Talent Amplifier Programme (“TAP")

The FSDC rolled out the TAP, a job-shadowing scheme, in March
2020, aiming to help nurture a sustained pool of talents for
the financial services industry in Hong Kong through offering
real-life exposure to business environment. Shortlisted students
would be given opportunities to join a tailor-made job shadowing
programme and be mentored by leading industry practitioners.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal Activities

The FSDC is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at
Unit 502, 5/F, Nexxus Building, No. 41 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the FSDC are:

1. advising the Government on strategies and measures to
expand the scope of the financial markets of Hong Kong
and enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong as an
international financial centre;

2. supporting the financial services industry of Hong Kong
in developing the core competence and knowledge of its
practitioners; and

3. promoting the financial services industry of Hong Kong
and Hong Kong as an international financial centre in the
Mainland and overseas.

Business review

Mission

The FSDC is established in 2013 and incorporated in 2018 as a
high-level and cross-sectoral advisory body to engage the industry
and formulate proposals to promote the further development of
Hong Kong'’s financial services industry.

Our Business

This year was the first full year that the FSDC performed its role as
an incorporated entity with staff of its own. Under the leadership
of the Board, the FSDC has been able to commence planning for
the longer term and foster synergy across its functions through
research, market promotion and human capital development with
more flexibility.
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Policy research
The FSDC conducts policy research and industry surveys for the
formulation of proposals to the Government and regulators.
During the year 2019/20, the FSDC issued a total of six research
reports and other papers on different areas of financial services
covering a range of topics. In addition, the FSDC also produced
a marketing booklet, showcasing the strengths of Hong Kong's
services

financial industry. The number of publications is

maintained at a level similar to such of previous years.

Market promotion

The FSDC plays an important role in promoting Hong Kong and
its unique advantages as an international financial centre locally,
in the Mainland and overseas. In the year 2019/20, the FSDC
participated in 21 events including hosting panel discussions and
having the FSDC members to deliver keynote speeches on topical
issues of the industry at events well attended by the financial
community. The FSDC also continued to engage local, Mainland
and overseas stakeholders through 35 outreach luncheons and
liaison meetings.

Human capital development

With the objective to facilitating the harnessing of skills and
expertise through collaboration with education and training
institutions, trade bodies and practitioners, the FSDC provided
tertiary students with career advice through organising eight
human capital initiatives during the year. The FSDC also prepared
to roll out a job-shadowing programme in the coming year.

Financial highlights

Government subvention

The funding of the FSDC comes entirely from the Government
in the form of annual subvention. The net subvention received
from the Government for the year 2019/20 was HK$30 million,
representing HK$32 million recurrent subvention for the year and
HK$2 million refund to the Government on the unutilised budget
for a designated project. The annual recurrent subvention from
2019/20 onwards is estimated at HK$32 million per year.
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Expenditure

Total expenditure for the year was HK$26.7 million (2019: HK$5.7
million) included staff cost, office rental and related expenses,
promotion and publicity expenses, professional fees on research
activities and administration overheads. The rise in expenditure
is due to the full-year effect of the operation of the FSDC in
the year 2019/20 and the expenditure of the FSDC Secretariat
before its incorporation in September 2019 was met by the
Financial Services Branch of the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau. The FSDC set up its own executive team during the year,
headed by an Executive Director with 12 staff members, which
contributed to a significant rise in staff costs for the year.

Result for the year

The FSDC recorded a surplus before income tax of HK$8.8 million
for the year which is subject to the Hong Kong Profit tax. The
surplus after tax of HK$7.7 million will be carried forward as the
reserve fund for the FSDC.

Key relationship with Stakeholders

Being a Government subvented organisation, the FSDC follows
and observes all regulations and requirements specified by the
Government, including but not limited to matters regarding the
FSDC's application of fund.

As a cross-sectoral advisory body, the FSDC is tasked to engage
the financial services industry in formulating proposals to promote
the further development of the financial services industry of Hong
Kong and to map out the strategic direction for the development.
As part of the policy research work, the FSDC works with
regulatory and trade bodies, as well as industry and professional
associations, to identify new opportunities for and any constraints
on the sustainable growth and diversity of the financial services
industry. It also maintains ongoing dialogue with relevant bodies
in the Mainland and overseas to support the financial services
industry of Hong Kong in accessing new markets and growth

areas.
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The FSDC promotes the financial services industry of Hong Kong
in collaboration with government agencies, industry organisations
and financial institutions. It also rides on the international network
of financial centres to get the voice of Hong Kong Inc. heard
locally and further afield. Harnessing the potential of social media,
the FSDC has developed and will continue to create informative
content to engage financial services professionals, corporations
and related organisations.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The FSDC relies on the Government to fund its operations, any
changes to the Government policy on its subvention to the FSDC
may have vital effect on the future development of it.

Themes and messages that the FSDC disseminates as well as
target audiences whom it approaches are subject to the local,
cross-boundary and international social-economic conditions.
Turbulence in the macro environment can impact the FSDC's

promotional efforts.
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Future Development

Going forward, the FSDC will continue its three-pronged strategy,
namely policy research, market promotion and human capital
development. In terms of policy research, the FSDC will continue
to work closely with market participants in identifying ways
to enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong as a top-tier
international financial centre. The FSDC will expand the market
outreach through identifying new partners and deepening the
use of digital channels while maintaining close ties with existing
stakeholders. To support the industry in developing the core
competence and knowledge of its practitioners, the FSDC will
continue to organise knowledge sharing seminars and conducting
talent development study. The FSDC will explore running bespoke
events on topics with industry-wide interest, catering to a global
and sizable audience.

Share Capital
The FSDC is a company limited by guarantee and therefore does
not have any share capital.

Financial Statements

The surplus of the FSDC for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the state of the FSDC's affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 78 to 132.

Reserve

Movement in reserve during the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in statement of changes in funds on page 81.
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The Board of Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr Laurence Li Lu-jen
Mr James H. Lau Jr. (retired with effect from 22 April 2020)
Mr Joseph H. L. Chan  (Alternate Director to Mr James H. Lau Jr.
and re-designated as Alternate Director to
Mr Christopher Hui Ching-yu
with effect from 22 April 2020)
Dr Au King-lun
Ms Diana Cesar
Ms Bonnie Y Chan (resigned with effect from
2 January 2020)
Ms Lena Chan
Mr Mark Dickens
Ms Ding Chen
Mr Henry Fan Hung-ling
Mr Glenn Fok
Dr Hu Zhanghong
Mr Brian Li Man-bun
Mr Joe Ngai
Mr Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir
Ms Winnie Wong Chi-shun
Mr Stephen Wong Yuen-shan
Mr Christopher Hui Ching-yu (appointed with effect from
17 June 2019 and re-designated
as Ex-officio Board Member with
effect from 22 April 2020)

Mr Jimmy Lai Chi Ming (appointed with effect from
2 January 2020)
Dr Lin Yong (appointed with effect from

2 January 2020)

Except for Mr James H. Lau Jr. and Ms Bonnie Y Chan, all the
existing directors shall continue in office for the following year.
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Directors’ Interests in Transaction,
Arrangements or Contracts

No contract of significance to which the FSDC was a party, and
in which a director of the FSDC had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the FSDC is currently in force and was in force this year.

Auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of
the FSDC will be proposed to Members of the FSDC.

On behalf of the Board
Laurence Li Lu-jen
Chairman

29 June 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

(Incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Financial Services
Development Council (“the FSDC") set out on pages 78 to 132,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the FSDC as at 31 March 2020 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the FSDC in accordance with
the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the FSDC's
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the FSDC’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the FSDC or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the FSDC'’s

internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements — Continued

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the FSDC's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the FSDC to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020

If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese versions of this auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.

EALRBARENEX A XRABRERTE  — A RCRARZE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

20189 H21H
HZ2020F (FEMKZBH)ZE
3A3MHILEEE 2019938318 HE
For the period from
21 September 2018

(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B 5 B 7
Note HK$ HK$
KA Revenue
W& E Government subventions 7 35,527,673 5,901,737
H Ath I A Other income 14,273 78
35,541,946 5,901,815
o Less:
EEER Operating expenses
& 8 KA Staff costs 9 12,550,224 213,829
ZEE & Auditor’s remuneration 110,000 100,000
e Depreciation
—REEE — Owned assets 12 1,178,119 192,830
— FREEE — Right-of-use assets 13 3,908,701 —
B BT IT expenses 374,109 38,576
FERMEEE A Legal and professional fees 250,500 250,125
5 E Market promotion 3,843,248 711,612
ANEREE Human capital initiatives 176,330 —
MR ARERBEE R Office set-up expenses — 198,034
K 7 Policy research 1,145,565 —
B AT H Premises expenses 747,645 1,716,857
RiE& A Recruitment expenses 102,141 2,164,898
HihgEB A Other operating expenses 1,257,975 148,741
25,644,557 5,735,502
B 75 B AR Finance costs
HEAENE Interest on lease liabilities 17 1,032,498 —
BRI & &k Surplus before income tax 8,864,891 166,313
FEHEZH Income tax expense 11 (1,197,706) (154,790)
AEE/HERSREREE Surplus and total
W 3% 44 8 comprehensive income
for the year/period 7,667,185 11,523
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7202093 A31H
AS at 31 March 2020

2020 2019
o= B i
Note HK$ HK$
IRBEE Non-current assets
TR -RKBNEHE Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 12 5,460,879 6,448,502
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 13 18,240,604 —
23,701,483 6,448,502
REBEE Current assets
e RIEMFKIE Deposits and prepayments 14 1,533,896 1,863,973
RITF K Bank balances 10,389,623 6,929,406
11,923,519 8,793,379
BmEE Total assets 35,625,002 15,241,881
REBAE Current liabilities
BB ERS Government subventions
received in advance 15 1,884,744 6,331,984
BEXE S Capital subventions 16 1,080,433 1,077,974
E b FEAS SRR ET IR Other payables and accruals 687,330 2,738,007
HEBE Lease liabilities 17 3,726,367 —
B BIE Tax payable 1,153,868 —
8,532,742 10,147,965
BRBEE(BH) Net current assets/
(liabilities) 3,390,777 (1,354,586)

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2019/20 79



MEIRRAE &
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - Continued

7202093 A31H
AS at 31 March 2020

2020 2019
BT 5T il okt
Note HKS HK$
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
BRER® Capital subventions 16 3,844,711 4,927,603
HESE Lease liabilities 17 15,370,213 —
EEFIBBEE Deferred tax liabilities 18 198,628 154,790
19,413,552 5,082,393
e E Total liabilities 27,946,294 15,230,358
BEE Net assets 7,678,708 11,523
=g Funds
HHEE® Reserve fund 19 7,678,708 11,523

HREBEBEEFINANMBEHRRCDN20200F6 AR BB RESTSHELRETE  YHTIRKRER
2.

The financial statements on pages 78 to 132 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of
the FSDC on 29 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Z{# = Laurence Li Lu-jen Z % Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir
E F Director E F Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

B E202063A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Reserve fund
B
HK$
H2018F9H21H (FEM AL R ) & Surplus and total comprehensive income
2019F3A3THEAIM A% L 2E U 42E  for the period from 21 September 2018
(date of incorporation) to 31 March 2019 11,523
20193 H318 K2019F4F18 & & Balance at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 11,523
AFEERHBEREIENRGRE Surplus and total comprehensive income
for the year 7,667,185
202043 318 4 #4 Balance at 31 March 2020 7,678,708
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B E202063A31B L FE
For the year ended 31 March 2020

A2018F9H21H
BZ2020F (EMKZBEH)ZE
3A3MBLEEFE 2019F3A31H A
For the period from
21 September 2018

(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B 5 B 7 M
Note HK$ HK$
RETBHHERE Cash flows from operating
activities
B A1 45 B 2 BT & 4 Surplus before income tax
expense 8,864,891 166,313
R Adjustments for:
RE RERZESRE Depreciation on
e furniture, fixtures and
equipment 1,178,119 192,830
TRAEEERE Depreciation on right-of-
use assets 3,908,701 —
B WA Interest income (12,481) (78)
HMEABENNERX Interest expenses on lease
liabilities 1,032,498 —
EELESEHATZLKE R Operating surplus before
working capital changes 14,971,728 359,065
% & A RIE 2 180 Increase in deposits and
prepayments (51,381) (1,863,973)
BRBNESE 2 (Decrease)/Increase in
CRL ) /18 government subventions
received in advance (4,447,240) 6,331,984
HAoh ARG IR 2 (Decrease)/Increase in other
(R 2) /18 payables and accruals (1,558,405) 2,738,007
BRETEMBZEELFESE  Net cash from operating
activities 8,914,702 7,565,083
REFHZEERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BERA KBERX Purchase of furniture,
fixtures and equipment (190,496) (6,641,332)
BREHEZORD),/ (Decrease)/Increase in
% 10 capital subventions (1,080,433) 6,005,577
2R S Interest received 12,481 78
REZEFTAZESFEE  Net cash used in investing
activities (1,258,448) (635,677)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued

B E202063A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 March 2020

# £20204F

2018498218
(GEftx sz BER) =

3A31HIEEE 2019F3A31HEIH

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
incorporation) to
31 March 2019

B 5 B ko
Note HK$ HK$
RMETBHZ2RERE Cash flows from financing
activities
EEHEEBENEAEED  Repayment of principal
portion of lease liabilities 17 (3,163,539) —
EEHEEAFEMNMNEZHD  Repayment of interest
portion of lease liabilities 17 (1,032,498) —
BEEEFMAZEEFEE  Net cash used in financing
activities 17 (4,196,037) —
REPHESEEYWZEM  Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 3,460,217 6,929,406
F9,/BANz2BEEREE  Cash and cash equivalents
Z£EY at the beginning of the
year/period 6,929,406 —
ERHRZEELRESE  Cash and cash equivalents
Z£EY at the end of the year/
period
RERITHEH representing bank balances 10,389,623 6,929,406

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2019/20 83



MEHRERME
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202043 A31H
31 March 2020
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The FSDC is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and

limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office
is Unit 502, 5/F, Nexxus Building, No. 41 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the FSDC are:

advising the Government on strategies and measures
to expand the scope of the financial markets of Hong
Kong and enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong
as an international financial centre;

supporting the financial services industry of Hong
Kong in developing the core competence and

knowledge of its practitioners; and

promoting the financial services industry of Hong
Kong and Hong Kong as an international financial
centre in the Mainland and overseas.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(9]

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“"HK$"), the functional currency of the FSDC.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the FSDC operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continuved

202043 A31H
31 March 2020

3. RMBRMBHREER 3.

(@) BT KETEBHBER
LB — H2019F441BERK

EREMBHREENE
HE

1658

ER(BRMBHRERE
%89 —mE23%R
T 15 % BE 22 1Y T JE 1%

AW REEN
FEIFAMEET
AFRFHEZIEFELT L

BB gER
F19R BT
GFENEET B R B AE B

R G ERFE28RNESR
REZRNEIREELFZ
RA#E

W

BAV KRS ER
2015-201738 B #) F & o 3
BEBEERE 125 AT 137 ﬁz:
BB B R E230E
B BB R EES //%35755
EHEH BEEYBHEER
ENnSgEEe ELHaEET

BR DAT Bt 51 - R 40 1k B 37 AT =k
RETEEVHRERANE S %
ROMBEHRRLBERNTE -

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019

HKFRS 16

Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features and Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes;, HKAS 23

Borrowing Costs, HKFRS 3 Business Combinations,;
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Except for as explained below, the adoption of these
new or revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the
FSDC's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continuved

202043 A31H
31 March 2020

3. RMEERMBREER — &

(@) BRFHF RRIETEBMBER
SR — R2019F481BEXK
— &
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), HK(FRIC) — Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC) — Int 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC) — Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the statement
of financial position as a right-of-use assets and a
lease liabilities, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low-value or are determined as short-term
leases. From a lessor's perspective, the accounting
treatment is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17.

For details of HKFRS 16 regarding its new
definition of a lease, its impact on the FSDC's
accounting policies and the transition method
adopted by the FSDC as allowed under HKFRS
16, please refer to section (i) to (v) of this note.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

202043 A31H
31 March 2020

3. RMBEERMBREER — &

(@) BT KETEBHBER
LB — H2019F441BERK
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— &
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

0]

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 —
Continued

On adoption of HKFRS 16,
recognised

the FSDC

lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified
as "operating leases” under the principles
of HKAS

measured at the present value of the remaining

17 Leases. These liabilities were
lease payments, discounted using the FSDC's
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019.

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases were measured on a retrospective basis
as if the new rules had always been applied.
Other right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised
in the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the

date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continuved

202043 A31H
31 March 2020
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 —
Continued
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the FSDC has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

. reliance on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous;

o the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application; and

. the use of hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continuved

202043 A31H
31 March 2020

3. RMATRMBREERN —F| 3.

(@) BT KETEBHBER
LB — H2019F441BERK

=
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 —

Continued

The following tables summarised the impact

of transition to HKFRS 16 on statement of
financial position as of 31 March 2019 to that
of 1 April 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)):

TUg, O )
#2019%4 811 Statement of financial position ke

#9 Bt 35 AR R & as at 1 April 2019 HK$
EREEE Right-of-use assets 22,149,305
HEBEGERE) Lease liabilities (non-current) 19,096,580
HEBE(RE) Lease liabilities (current) 3,163,539
BEE S Deferred rent (492,272)
ENEE Prepaid rent (381,458)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continuved

202043 A31H
31 March 2020
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

0]

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 —
Continued

The following reconciliation explains how the
operating lease commitments disclosed applying
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 March 2019 could
be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date
of initial application recognised in the statement
of financial position as at 1 April 2019:

Reconciliation of operating lease B
commitment to lease liabilities HK$

201953 A31AMKE A ERIE Operating lease commitment

13
o]

B’
EME D

TERRBRABEEGTRE
FEH R R E A R

HE %

HeHRHEEMESES

BENES
H Al

REHM BRI (GEARRE KA)

R2019F4A 1B HEAE RS

R2019F4 A1 B EAR R
KERANBEGBEEAD
ZEWNIIE B ch R =
F K B5% °
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as of 31 March 2019 13,211,894
Adjustments for:
Non-lease component (1,476,835)
Lease payments for the additional
periods where the FSDC
considers it reasonably
certain that it will exercise
the extension option 13,732,488
Accrued lease liabilities relating to
rent-free period 492,272
Prepaid rent (381,458)
Others (20,675)
Future interest expenses
(include in finance costs) (3,297,567)
Total lease liabilities as of
1 April 2019 22,260,119

The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2019 is 5%.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(i)

The new definition of a lease
Under HKFRS 16,
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the

a lease is defined as a

right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
A contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of use,
has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset; and (b) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the
practical expedient which allows the lessee
to elect, by class of underlying asset, not to
separate non-lease components from lease
components, and instead account for each
lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(iii) Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a
lease as an operating lease or a finance lease
based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a lease asset lie
with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease is
determined as an operating lease, the lessee
would recognise the lease payments under the
operating lease as an expense over the lease
term. The asset under the lease would not
be recognised in the statement of financial
position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance leases)
are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides
accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The FSDC
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and
leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(iii) Accounting as a lessee — Continued

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

The FSDC measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the FSDC measures the right-of-use assets at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The FSDC recognised right-of-use assets in
relation to leases of office premises which had
previously been classified as operating lease.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(iii) Accounting as a lessee — Continued

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the FSDC shall
use the FSDC's incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of
the lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to
be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (v) payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(iii)

(iv)

Accounting as a lessee — Continued

Lease liability — Continued

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, a change in the lease term, a change
in the in-substance fixed lease payments
or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a
lessor is substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 does not have significant impact on
these financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(v)

Transition

As mentioned above, the FSDC has applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach. The initial recognition involves
calculating the present value of all remaining
lease payments using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application
and stating the lease liability at the calculated
amount on the statement of financial position.
The FSDC measures the right-of-use assets at
an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments recognised immediately before the

date of initial application.

For all these right-of-use assets, the FSDC
has applied HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
at 1 April 2019 to assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

(v)

Transition — Continued

The FSDC has also applied the following
practical expedients: (i) applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics; (i) applied
the exemption of not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low-value assets; (iii) excluded the initial direct
costs from the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at 1 April 2019; and (iv) used hindsight
in determining the lease terms if the contracts
contain options to extend or terminate the

leases.

Other than the above, the FSDC has applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is
applied to all of the FSDC's lease contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4; and (ii) not
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease under
HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) — Int 4.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 — Continued

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12 Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes. Under the interpretation, the
entity shall determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together based
on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then
the entity should measure current and deferred tax
in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines
it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the
determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of

the uncertainty.

The adoption of this interpretation has no significant
impact on these financial statements as the FSDC
does not identify any significant uncertainty in
accounting the income taxes.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the FSDC's financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the FSDC.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of Material'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs — Continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective — Continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of Material
The amendments clarify the definition and
explanation of “material”, aligning the definition
HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
incorporating

across all
Framework, and supporting

requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
In addition, the

amendments require companies to provide additional

interest rate benchmark reform.

information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these

uncertainties.

The FSDC is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the FSDC's accounting policies and
financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset includes its
purchase price and any direct costs of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the FSDC and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to statement of
comprehensive income during the period in which
they are incurred.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-

line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Right-of-use assets (building)
— over the remaining term of the lease

Leasehold improvements — 6 years

Furniture and fixtures — 6 years

Office equipment — 5 years
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(a)

(b)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment —
Continued

The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. An asset is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than its estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is the difference between its
net proceeds and carrying amount, and is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income on
disposal.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019)

The FSDC as lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
FSDC has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(b)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) — Continued

The FSDC as lessee — Continued
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability; (i) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv)
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The FSDC measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under cost model, the
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the FSDC uses the
FSDC's incremental borrowing rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(b)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) — Continued

The FSDC as lessee — Continued

Lease liability — Continued

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the FSDC
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(9]

(d)

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
term of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The FSDC as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on straight-line
method over the lease term. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of

contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and

interest are measured at amortised cost.

Deposits and bank balances are classified as
financial assets at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses, impairment losses, gain or loss on
derecognition are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(d) Financial instruments — Continued

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Gains or losses arising on derecognition are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of financial assets

The FSDC assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(e)

Revenue recognition

Government subventions

Government subventions are recognised initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the FSDC will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Government
subventions that compensate the FSDC for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Government subventions relating to specific
projects are deferred and recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the expenses that they are
intended to compensate.

Government subventions received for the purchase
of furniture, fixtures and equipment are recorded
as capital subventions in the statement of financial
position and recognised as revenue over the useful
lives of the relevant assets.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(f)

(9)

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable surpluses will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they

arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(h)

0]

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before 12
months after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised
in the period when the employees render the
related services.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan are recognised as an expense
when the services are rendered by the

employees.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the FSDC has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

0)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the FSDC if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
FSDC;

(i) has significant influence over the FSDC;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the FSDC.

An entity is related to the FSDC if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the FSDC are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

0)

Related parties — Continued

(b)

— Continued

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of the
FSDC or an entity related to the FSDC;

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

FSDC.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ANNUAL REPORT ##H 2019/20

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the FSDC reviews
the carrying amounts of non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

statement of comprehensive income.
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5. BEXER 5.

TEREEETHERERRTER
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6. EXASHERMGEFZEER 6.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The FSDC's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the FSDC's ability to continue as a going concern.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES

In applying the accounting policies, the FSDC makes
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that the directors are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

A review of the more significant estimates and assumptions
used in the preparation of these financial statements is as
follows:

Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred tax are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts of
deferred tax, expected taxable surplus are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the FSDC and require a significant level
of judgment exercised by the directors. Any change in
such assumptions and judgment would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax to be recognised and hence the
net surplus/deficit in future years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES — Continued

Determining the lease term

As explained in note 3(a)(i), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease term
at the commencement date for the lease that include
an renewal option exercisable by the FSDC, the FSDC
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal option
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the FSDC to exercise the
option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the FSDC's operation. The lease term is reassessed
when there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the FSDC's control.

Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised

in future years.
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7. BFEBS 7. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
201849F9H21H

G avA=E)

HZ£20205F 220194

3AMBLEE 3A31H B
For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B okt
HK$ HK$
BERTERS Subventions for recurrent expenditure 34,447,240 5,723,086
BERE® M Subventions for capital expenditure 1,080,433 178,651
EEHEKRZRANERDN Government subventions
&R ® recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income 35,527,673 5,901,737
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8. Hftlr A

8. OTHER INCOME

20184F9H21H
(FE RS2 B ER)
B Z2020F F2019%F
3AMBLEE 3A31H B
For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B 7

HK$ HK$
AT B A Bank interest income 12,481 78
REBEETRLE Refund of business registration fee 1,792 —
14,273 78
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9. EBERAE 9. STAFF COSTS
20184F9H21H
(MR AK Sz B A7)
B Z£2020F F2019%F
3AMBLEE 3A31HE™
For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
B &
HK$ HK$
EBEMRAL(BIE1REE) :  Staff costs (including a director)
comprise:
N & B 1R A Salaries and other benefits 12,333,863 207,342
TE R FORRET 8l 2 Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan 216,361 6,487
12,550,224 213,829
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10. EEEE 10.

EEMRBETE(QAEIN(FE622
B)FIBFEIL(AB(REEENmE
FOROIN(FE6226E) 2 WEMT

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622 G) are as follows:

2018494218
(FEf Az A ER)
B E20205 220194
3A3MBILEE 3A31H B

For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
incorporation) to
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Pl 7
HKS$ HK$
E=EWE Fee — —
E AR ML Salaries and bonus 2,529,160 —
RIRET 8 Z 5k Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes 15,000 —
2,544,160 —

BRUMTESI EFEMAEFHR
BHM - EEXNABEZITRAEER
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Except for the Executive Director, all Directors of the
Board are not remunerated. The staff costs included the
emoluments of the Executive Director as stated above.
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1. AEHZH 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BEBFGHAEREE2EE T ERT Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
TR B IZ8 5%t & - HIgHiE2A & HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
TR FERT B M E AR 16 5% & o 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.
FPEBREPHRIER: The amount of taxation in the statement of comprehensive

income represents:

20185F9H21H
(FEf A Sz B ER)
B Z£2020F F2019%F
3AMBLEE 3A31HEIE
For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

7B s &

HK$ HK$
EHBE — FENEH Current tax — Hong Kong

Profits Tax

— FE R IE — tax for the current year/period 1,153,868 —
I & 18 (B 5E18) Deferred tax (Note 18)
— FEHE — current year/period 43,838 154,790
FEFZH Income tax expense 1,197,706 154,790
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1. AEHZIH — & 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — Continued
RNEE /BHEAEH T HTHEBATR The income tax expense for the year/period can be
SRE MR reconciled to the surplus before income tax as follows:
20189 H21H
(FEf Az B HA)
B Z£20205F £2019%F

3AMBLEEE 3A31H HifE
For the period from
21 September 2018
(date of
For the year ended incorporation) to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B 5
HK$ HK$
15 B & &4 Surplus before income tax 8,864,891 166,313
REBFEMEFFE ZHIE  Tax calculated at Hong Kong
profits tax rate 1,462,707 13,721
BEBEOHRKTE Tax effect of concessionary tax
rate (165,000) —
BARMU AT 22 Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,060) (6)
PAHBRZN N B2 & Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses — 13,705
FERHIBEEENHEETE  Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised — 127,370
ERALARIARBROB B E B Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (254,741) —
HEER Tax concession (20,000) —
Hitp Others 176,800 —
S B 2 Income tax expense 1,197,706 154,790
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12. RE -HEREE 12. FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

HEMEEE KRALE WAERE A5t

Leasehold Furniture and Office
improvements fixtures equipment Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
2N Cost
HA A 3 N Additions during

the period 3,795,641 1,343,030 1,502,661 6,641,332

2019534318 K& At 31 March 2019

2019F4H1H and 1 April 2019 3,795,641 1,343,030 1,502,661 6,641,332
FELM Additions during
the year 83,950 7,204 99,342 190,496
#2020F3A31H At 31 March 2020 3,879,591 1,350,234 1,602,003 6,831,828
REtiE Accumulated
depreciation
HETE Depreciation charge
for the period 105,434 37,307 50,089 192,830

R2019F3A318 & At 31 March 2019

2019F4H1H and 1 April 2019 105,434 37,307 50,089 192,830
FEWE Depreciation charge
for the year 646,598 225,039 306,482 1,178,119
7202093 A31H At 31 March 2020 752,032 262,346 356,571 1,370,949
SR A Carrying amount
20203 A31H At 31 March 2020 3,127,559 1,087,888 1,245,432 5,460,879
M2019F3HA31H At 31 March 2019 3,690,207 1,305,723 1,452,572 6,448,502
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13. ERAEEE 13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
CEREEBHERA R EHE The FSDC leases office premises in Hong Kong. The leases
BN REEMNHEERBRFEEEMNK - of which comprise only fixed payments over the lease term.

DR BT
Office premises
B
HK$
R2019F 4B E R IRBE B TRE  Recognition of right-of-use asset upon
LERIFE1RENERACAEEE initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on
1 April 2019 22,149,305
e Depreciation (3,908,701)
FAREEFAE Closing net carrying amount 18,240,604
720204638318 At 31 March 2020
BN Cost 22,149,305
ZETITE Accumulated depreciation (3,908,701)
REFE Net carrying amount 18,240,604
14. REMBENARE 14. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
B 7
HK$ HK$
Z& Deposits 1,349,009 1,389,059
B A Prepayments 184,887 474,914
1,533,896 1,863,973
% & 8 1,349,009 (20184 : & #& Deposits of HK$1,349,009 (2018: HK$1,389,059) which are
1,389,059) A I A1 F LA Uk [E] - expected to be recovered after more than one year.
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15. EWBIFEBR £ 15. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS RECEIVED IN
ADVANCE
s
HK$

E2018% 99218 (FEM AL BHHI) 2019 Government subventions received during

FIANHHHEKINBNTERD S the period from 21 September 2018
(date of incorporation) to
31 March 2019 12,055,070
AU A (M 7E7) Recognised as revenue (Note 7) (5,723,086)
201993 A31H At 31 March 2019 6,331,984
FEE Z2020F3A318 IEFEE W R Government subventions received during
T E B & year ended 31 March 2020 30,000,000
AW (B 557) Recognised as revenue (Note 7) (34,447,240)
202053 H31H At 31 March 2020 1,884,744
HEREHRRA KAERBBAH Subventions unexpended/not recognised as revenue at the
Y& end of the reporting period:
2020 2019
B ok
HK$ HK$
HERHEMIZE Rental and other deposits 1,349,009 1,389,059
RERMRAERE Furniture and office equipment 535,735 442,925
HiIEH Other projects — 4,500,000
1,884,744 6,331,984
FEWBFEDERBRSEDZMAEE Government subventions received in advance represent
BERABREREMPBREIHETHIR subventions received in connection with expenditure to
BRI RIE  BWEREGELEA be incurred after the end of the reporting period for
EEREHEBEESHEENBEAERF specific uses and are deferred and recognised as revenue
IR AW A - on a systematic basis in the same period in which the

expenditure is incurred.
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16. EXEP S 16. CAPITAL SUBVENTIONS
B
HK$
20185 9A21H (GEMi Bk HED) & Capital subventions received during the
2019F3A3IH R KR EXRER & period from 21 September 2018 (date of
incorporation) to 31 March 2019 6,184,228
AU A (M 5E7) Recognised as revenue (Note 7) (178,651)
201993 A31H At 31 March 2019 6,005,577
AW (B 5£7) Recognised as revenue (Note 7) (1,080,433)
TR20209F3H31H At 31 March 2020 4,925,144
R&: Representing: 2020 2019
B &
HK$ HK$
mBAaE Current liabilities 1,080,433 1,077,974
EmBAalE Non-current liabilities 3,844,711 4,927,603
4,925,144 6,005,577
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31 March 2020

17. HE&AE 17. LEASES LIABILITIES
RERVRERKESENEER The FSDC has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
BB REAER F16e5 - I iE R retrospective approach and recognise lease liabilities relating
ERRBEEESHENFEIREEA to a lease which was previously classified as operating leases
KEHENHEFHANHEERE - A under HKAS 17. Refer to Note 3 (a)(v) for further details
HBREMNELZHMAEE  Z25Ma about transition.

3@)(v) °
20204 3A31A 31 March 2020 N
Office premises
ket
HKS$
BRRRAEEY @ EER 1657 Initial application of HKFRS 16
(M 7E3(0)(0)) (Note 3(a)(i) 22,260,119
MBHEZ Interest expense 1,032,498
HEMK Lease payments (4,196,037)
19,096,580
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ARBEENKWBHBEROT

17. LEASES LIABILITIES — Continued

AERBENKNBHBEROT

M202053H31H At 31 March 2020 REEEMR 2 RE
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
HK$ HK$ HK$
15 A Within one year 4,577,496 851,129 3,726,367
HBBIFEETBE2E Later than one year and not
later than two years 4,577,496 660,482 3,917,014
BIE2F BT BB F Later than two years and not
later than five years 9,154,992 709,504 8,445,488
H A5 F Later than five years 3,051,664 43,953 3,007,711
21,361,648 2,265,068 19,096,580
20194718 At 1 April 2019 RIEBEER® B HE
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$
19F A Within one year 4,196,037 1,032,498 3,163,539
BBIF RN BB2F Later than one year and not
later than two years 4,577,496 851,129 3,726,367
B E2F BB ASF Later than two years and not
later than five years 9,154,992 1,120,561 8,034,431
B iE5F Later than five years 7,629,161 293,379 7,335,782
25,557,686 3,297,567 22,260,119
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31 March 2020

17.

*HEE% - IIE

ARBENKOBRESTOT

17. LEASES LIABILITIES — Continued

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as

follows:
20203 H31H 2019 4A1H
31 March 2020 1 April 2019
B S
HKS$ HK$
mEEE Current liabilities 3,726,367 3,163,539
EREAE Non-current liabilities 15,370,213 19,096,580
19,096,580 22,260,119

REEHELZABHEET:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

2020
B
HK$
YR e 2 78 B 7% = R 1657 Initial application of HKFRS 16 22,260,119
HEeEmEZE: Change from cash flows:
BEHEAENETE MY Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities (3,163,539)
EEHEAGHN BN Repayment of interest portion of
lease liabilities (1,032,498)
H & Other changes:
F & Interest 1,032,498
M3H31H At 31 March 19,096,580
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18. ELBEEE 18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
MEHBEIFTE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
B
HK$
EERMBEEEFE HRZ Movement of deferred tax liabilities during
BENT the year/period:

P EEW E R (1) Charge to statement of comprehensive

income (Note 11) 154,790
FR2019F3A31H K2019F481H As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 154,790
P EE W E R (1) Charge to statement of comprehensive

income (Note 11) 43,838
TR20209F3H31H As at 31 March 2020 198,628

19. REES 19. RESERVE FUND

FEHEESUE—RASE  YHESERAE The reserve fund is available for general use and can
TEA REREVBFERTHKR  FE be spent at the discretion of the FSDC. Government
E2AAXADANBNTED 2 RETF subventions at the end of a financial year, which forms
MRz BRFERERNER® BEA25% a part of the reserve fund, shall not exceed 25% of the
(IE#ELER]D - BHEREE LR S Government subventions in the current financial year to the
BART—EVMREFEHEBRRN - FSDC (“the reserve ceiling”). The amount in excess of the

reserve ceiling would be returned to the Government in the
following financial year.
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31 March 2020

20.

21.

EEHERE
EEHERE — AHEA
2019938318 « & 3 B 5t 7 7] #
ZEBHEARARBN ZRERE
AEETENT

20. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENT

Operating leases — as lessee
At 31 March 2019, the FSDC had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease, which is payable as follows:

2019
ik
HK$

1F R
14E 1% B5F R

TEHRAELZEMETHEHA—ME ¥
FHOSHIF  ZAEEEME - A
ETRFEIAER -

BEXS

TEEERBEABHM
TERMNIEEHREABRES &
EMENFBENHRERM T 10H B

= o

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

21.

4,945,991
8,265,903

13,211,894

The FSDC leases a property under operating lease, which
runs for an initial period of three years with an option to
renew the lease. The lease does not include contingent
rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel compensation

Directors are the key management personnel of the FSDC.
Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed in note
10 to the financial statements.
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202043 A31H
31 March 2020

22. e@MITESE 22. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2020 2019
i ok
HK$ HK$

ERMEERBHERAE Financial assets at amortised cost

bi-gora Deposits 1,349,009 1,389,059
RITHFER Bank balances 10,389,623 6,929,406
11,738,632 8,318,465
2020 2019
B 7
HKS$ HK$

SR EERBIKAX Financial liabilities at amortised cost

E b JE A SR AT IR Other payables and accruals 687,330 2,738,007
HEAE Lease liabilities 19,096,580 —
19,783,910 2,738,007
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23. cRIERERE

(a)

(b)

FERR
EFERRESRIAN—FTER
ERETEEMIBES T REY
BB KRR

TRRFBEEERFIUTNEER
R -

TRBPERTEHKNESHER
REeXSTHEXSZHFEER

LA
ST}
ZoN

o

PITREBETREERBIRR YT
B3R -

HEZSWBEREERBEIE -

RBE AR
nBETRARESERERMNR
EFERBAELBINEERE -
RBEZRBAIARZZHF R
EEITANEE  FREIREY
RHERSABERAREL -

TERIYBEMEE  HLH
HEBMAEENAE &R
RECTHNERRBDES - BH
BIEIRHEES -

TERNEEETINERSER
MR MR - UBRERZHHER
SAARIMNER -

At mehEsARER -

23. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Credit
monitored.

risk of counterparties are continuously

The FSDC is exposed to counterparty credit risk on
the transactions in bank balances and rental deposits
paid.

Bank balances are only kept at banks with sound
credit rating.

Rental deposits are considered to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the FSDC will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
cash commitments. Liquidity risk may result from
counterparties’ failure to settle a contractual
obligation; or inability to generate cash flows as

anticipated.

The FSDC does not have any borrowing and therefore
has no repayment liability owing to debt. The FSDC
maintains sufficient short-term liquidity to fund its
operations.

Management of the FSDC closely monitored the cash
position of the FSDC to ensure sufficient cash is

available for payment of expenditure.

Therefore, liquidity risk is considered to be minimal.

If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese versions of this auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.

EALRBARENEX A XRABRERTE  — A RCRARZE -
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23. TREKRERE — &

(b)

132

TRESMNERAERERE °

ABRSBRNBERROF X

23. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT —
Continued

Liquidity risk — Continued
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. The undiscounted amount is derived from

FHE o interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
2020%3A31H 31 March 2020
15/ BME ESVES
fREE ReREAT RERER BHR25F BHR5EF S5E
Total contractual Within More than More than
Carrying  undiscounted cash 1 year or on 1 year but less 2 years but less More than 5
amount demand than 2 years than 5 years years
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
H i JEFFFAFTIR  Other payables
and accruals 687,330 687,330 687,330 - — —
HEAE Lease liabilities 19,096,580 21,361,648 4,577,496 4,577,496 9,154,992 3,051,664
19,783,910 22,048,978 5,264,826 4,577,496 9,154,992 3,051,664

20194 3A31H

31 March 2019

BHRITR 1A
REE RERBMAFT  IEEX
Total contractual
Carrying undiscounted cash  Within 1 year

Efth JEFUMETIE  Other payables and accruals

ANNUAL REPORT ## 2019/20

amount flows or on demand
ok s ok
HK$ HK$ HK$

2,738,007 2,738,007 2,738,007







EBPRTHET 4L FBRERES 502 E
Unit 502, 5/F, Nexxus Building,
No.41 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

E:E Tel: (852) 24931313

BH Fax: (852) 35855040

EH Email: enquiry@fsdc.org.hk
B Website: www.fsdc.org.hk
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